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NOTICE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 28TH ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD 
ON WEDNESDAY,28TH AUGUST,2019 AT 10:00 AM AT 
“COUNTRY INN HOTEL & RESORTS ”, MEHRAGOAN, 
BHIMTAL,UTTARAKHAND-248179,TO TRANSACT THE 
FOLLOWING BUSINESS:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31,2019 and the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sadhana Rai 
(DIN: 01585720), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment;

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

3.	 Appointment of Mr. Saurabh Kedia (DIN:02476376) as 
a Director of the Company.

	 To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without 
modification(s),the following resolution as “ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION” 

	 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
approval of the Board of Directors in their respective 
meetings held on 06th July,2019 and pursuant to 
the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and   Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of Listing 
Regulations (including  any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the 
approval of the Members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded  for the appointment of Mr. Saurabh 
Kedia (DIN 02476376) who was appointed as an 
additional director w.e.f 06th July,2019 in pursuance 
of Article 60of the Company & whoes current period 
of office is expiring on the date of the ensuing 28th 
Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a 
declaration confirming the criteria of Independence 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Listing Regulations, as amended from 
time to time, and who is eligible as an Independent 
Non- Executive Director of the Company, whose term 
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation, to hold 
office for 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of 
the Company for a term w.e.f. 06th July,2019 upto 05th 
July,2024.

4.	 Re-appointment of Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia 	 (DIN: 
00480125) as an Independent Director for a second 
term of five consecutive years, in terms of Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolutions as a 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
approval of the Board of Directors in their respective 
meetings held on 06th July,2019 and pursuant to 
the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and   Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of Listing 
Regulations (including   any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
the approval of the Members of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded  for re-appointment of Mr. Vishnu 
Gopal Rajgarhia (DIN 00480125) whose current 
period of office is expiring on 20thJuly,2019 and who 
has submitted a declaration confirming the criteria of 
Independence under Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Listing Regulations, as 
amended from time to time, and who is eligible for re-
appointment for a second term under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder and 
Listing Regulations as an Independent Non- Executive 
Director of the Company, whose term shall not be 
subject to retirement by rotation, to hold office for 5 
(five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company 
for a term w.e.f. 20th July,2019 upto 19th July,2024.”

			 

Sumeer Narain Mathur
Company Secretary &
Chief Financial Officer

Membership no:FCS9042
	 Address: House no: 04,Seemant  

Vihar,Behind Radisson Hotel,  
Kaushambi,Ghaziabad-201014

Date: 06th July,2019
Place: New Delhi 

	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE 
“MEETING”) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL, INSTEAD OF 
HERSELF/ HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT 
APPOINTING PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE 
DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF 
THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT 
HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
MEETING. A person can act as proxy on behalf of 
members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 
However, a member holding more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as  proxy and such 
person shall not act as proxy for any other shareholder. 
The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should 
be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 
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duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy 
form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of 
the Companies, Societies etc., must be supported by 
an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

1.	 Only registered members of the Company holding 
shares as on the cut-off date decided for the purpose, 
being 20th August,2019, or any proxy appointed 
by such registered member may attend and vote at 
the Annual General Meeting as provided under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.	 Electronic copy of the Notice of the aforesaid Annual 
General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating 
the process and manner of e-Voting along with 
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all 
the members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company for communication purposes unless any 
member has requested for a hard copy of the same. 
For members who have not registered their email 
address, physical copies of the Notice of the aforesaid 
Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia 
indicating the process and manner of e-Voting along 
with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in 
the permitted mode. The cut-off date is decided for 
the purpose of reckoning the number of shareholders 
eligible to receive notice of AGM is 20th August,2019 .

3.	 Voting Rights: Shareholders holding Equity Shares 
shall have one vote per share as shown against their 
holding and shareholders

4.	 VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS In 
Compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 
Company is pleased to provide members facility to 
exercise their right to vote means and the business 
may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided 
by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

5.	 Similarly, Members opting to vote physically can do 
the Similarly, Members opting to vote physically can 
do the same by remaining present at the meeting and 
should not exercise the option for e-voting. However, 
in case Members cast their vote exercising both 
the options, i.e. physical and e-voting, then votes 
cast through e-voting shall be only be taken into 
consideration and treated valid whereas votes cast 
physically at the meeting shall be treated as invalid. 
The “E-Voting “procedure along with the user id and 
password of each shareholder is annexed along with 
the proxy form at the end of the annual report.

6.	 Corporate Members are requested to send a duly 
certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their 
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at 
the Meeting.

7.	 Members/Proxies should fill in the Attendance Slip 
for attending the Meeting and bring their Attendance 

Slips along with their copy of the Annual Report to the 
Meeting.

8.	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only 
such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will been titled to vote.

9.	 Members who hold shares in electronic form are 
requested to write their DP ID and Client ID numbers 
and those who hold share(s) in physical form are 
requested to write their Folio Number in the Attendance 
Slip for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification 
of membership at the Meeting. 

10.	 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice are open for inspection by the Members at the 
Registered Office of the Company on all working days, 
except Saturdays between 11.00 A.M. and 2.00 P.M. 
up to the date of the Meeting. 

11.	 The Company’s Register of Members and Transfer 
Books will remain closed from 25th August, 2019 
to 30th August,2019 (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of the Meeting, and the “E-Voting “ facility 
shall be open for the period from 09:00 hours of 25th 
August,2019 to 17:00 hours of 27th August,2019 ,after 
this period the event will be no longer available for 
casting votes by “E-Voting “ mechanism .

12.	 Members are requested to intimate immediately 
any change in their address or other mandates to 
their Depository Participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. The Company 
or its Registrar and Transfer Agent cannot change 
mandates for shares in electronic form.

13.	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested 
to advise any change of address or bank mandates 
immediately to the Company / Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, Skyline Financial Services Pvt Limited.

14.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 
market. Members holding shares in electronic form 
are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to 
their Depository Participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts.

15.	 Members holding shares in physical form can submit 
their PAN details to the Company / Registrar and 
Transfer Agent.

16.	 Members holding shares in single name and physical 
form are advised to make nomination in respect of 
their shareholding in the Company. 

17.	 Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple 
folios in identical names or joint holding in the same 
order of names are requested to send the share 
certificates to Registrar and Transfer Agent, for 
consolidation into a single folio.

18.	 Members who have not registered their e-mail 
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addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
address so that they can receive the Annual Report and 
other communication from the Company electronically.

19.	 Mr. Vijay Kaul , Practicing Company Secretary 
(Membership No.2719), Proprietor - M/s. Vijay Kaul 
and Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner and he has 
communicated his willingness to be appointed and will 
be available for same purpose. 

20.	 The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion 
of voting at the annual general meeting, first count the 
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes 
cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 
two witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and make, not later than three days on conclusion 
of the annual general meeting, a consolidated 
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or 
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized 
by him in writing who shall countersign the same.

21.	 As per Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
results of e-voting are to be communicated to the BSE 
Limited, where the equity shares of the Company are 
listed, within 48 hours of the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting. The results declared along with the 
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.wellesleycorp.com and on the website of 
NSDL. 

22.	 Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the 
Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date 
of the Meeting, 28th August,2019

23.	 In respect of the information to be provided under 
Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
pertaining to the Directors being appointed, Members 
are requested to kindly refer to the chapter on 
Corporate Governance in the Annual Report. 

24.	 The route map of the venue of the Meeting is attached 
at the end of the Annual Report.

25.	 Members who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses so far are requested to register their 
e-mail address with their DP in case shares are held 
in electronic form or with the Company’s Registrar 
& Transfer Agent - SLFSPL in case shares are held 
in physical form so that they can receive the Annual 
Report and other communication from the Company 
electronically.

26.	 The Members desiring any information as regards to 
accounts are requested to write to the Company at 
an early date, so as to enable the Company to keep 
information ready.

27.	 As a measure of economy, copies of Annual Report 
will not be distributed at the Meeting. Members are 

therefore requested to bring their copy of the Annual 
Report to the Meeting

28.	 Members may please note that no gifts will be 
distributed at the Meeting.

29.	 The Registers maintained pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 170 & 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules thereunder will be made available for inspection 
by Members of the Company at the Meeting.

Details of the Director seeking re-apointment in the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting pursuant to 
Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Name of Director Mrs. Sadhana Rai
Age(Years) 64
Brief Resume/Na-
ture of Expertise in 
functional areas

She has done her graduation from 
University of Calcutta. She is a business 
women and has been into the business 
of Hotels and Resorts and Real Estate 
since 1993. She has 25 years of expe-
rience of managing the business.She is 
also a philanthropist and has undertak-
en various projects for underprivileged 
children.        

Relationships 
between directors 
inter-se

None

Directorships held 
in other Companies 
(excluding foreign 
companies, private 
companies and 
companies registered 
under Section 8 of 
the Companies Act, 
2013)

1)M/s Gokul Dealers Private Limited

Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of 
committees of other 
public companies.

NIL

Shareholding (No. of 
shares)

1,00,00,000

I-EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item no:3

The Board at their meeting held on 06th July,2019 on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee &subject to the approval of shareholders at the 
ensuing 28th Annual General Meeting has appointed Mr. 
Saurabh Kedia as an Additional Director of the company, 
as per the provisions of section 161 of the Companies 
Act,2013, he holds his office as an additional director upto 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, in terms of the requirements of the provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013 approval of the members of the 
Company is required for regularization of Mr. Saurabh Kedia 
as Director of the Company.
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The Company has received intimation in Form DIR-8 
from Mr. Saurabh Kedia, he is not disqualified from being 
appointed as an Independent Director in terms of Section 
164 of the Act, declaration that he meets with the criteria of 
independence as  prescribed under Section 149 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations and his consent to continue as an Independent 
Director.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the 
regularization of Mr Saurabh Kedia as an Independent 
Director of the Company commencing from 06th  July,2019 to 
05th July,2024 in terms of Section 149 and other applicable 
provisions of the Act and  Rules made there under. He is not 
liable to retire by rotation.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Saurabh Kedia fulfills the 
conditions for his appointment as an Independent Director 
as specified   in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations 
and is independent of the management. Based on the 
recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and keeping in view the expertise of Mr. Saurabh 
Kedia, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 06th 
July,2019 approved the appointment of Mr Saurabh Kedia 
as mentioned in the resolution.

Brief profile of Mr. SaurabhKedia is given below for 
reference of the member:

Name of Director Mr. Saurabh Kedia
Age(Years) 49
Brief Resume/Nature of Ex-
pertise in functional areas

Mr. Saurabh Kedia is an IT professional hav-
ing sound knowledge of Accounts & Finance 
he has worked with Espire Info labs Pvt Ltd 
and   Information Technologies India Ltd. Mr. 
Saurabh    Kedia is a commerce graduate and 
has also done Diploma in Advanced Software 
Engineering.
He has a 15 Years of cumulative experience in 
the IT industry with diversified exposure across 
verticals, domains and project life cycles. An 
accomplished leader, he has led several orga-
nization across industries , creating high perfor-
mance teams and successful business.
 He has conducted multiple training activities to 
both internal teams and external clients. Train-
ings involved technical trainings on Java as well 
as project management trainings. He has work 
experience in Stakeholder management, Proj-
ect Planning and monitoring, Project cost and 
profitability Management, Project Metrics Man-
agement, Team Management and Assessment. 

Relationships between direc-
tors inter-se

None

Directorships held in 
other Companies (excluding 
foreign companies, private 
companies and companies 
registered under Section 8 of 
the Companies Act, 2013)

1) Oriental Linens Limited
2) New Castle Stainless Steel Limited
3) Brentwoods International Limited
4) APD Investments Private Limited
5) Forest Fern Hospitality Private Limited
6) Forest Fern Resorts Private Limited

Memberships/ Chairman-
ships of committees of other 
public companies.

1)Audit Committee –Brentwoods International 
Limited
2) Nomination & Remuneration Committee- 
Brentwoods International Limited

Shareholding (No. of shares) NIL

Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Mr. Saurabh 
Kedia as an Independent Director setting out the terms and 
conditions is available for inspection by members at the 
Corporate Office of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and / or their relatives except Mr.Saurabh Kedia , 
to whom the resolution relates, is in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item 
no.3 for the approval of the members.

Item No. 4

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia was appointed as a Director on 
the Board of the Company by the members of the Company 
at the 24th Annual General Meeting as an Independent 
Director for a period of 5 years from 20th July, 2014 up to 
19th July,2019.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term 
upto five consecutive years on the Board of a Company 
but shall be eligible for re-appointment, for another term 
of upto five years, on passing of a special resolution by 
shareholders.

The Company has received intimation in Form DIR-8 from 
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia that, he is not disqualified from 
being re-appointed as an Independent Director in terms of 
Section 164 of the Act, declaration that he meets with the 
criteria of independence as  prescribed under Section 149

(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
SEBI Listing Regulations and his consent to continue as an 
Independent Director.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the 
re-appointment of Mr Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia as an 
Independent Director of the Company commencing from 
20th July,2019 to 19th July,2024 in terms of Section 149 and 
other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made there 
under. He is not liable to retire by rotation.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajrahia fulfills 
the conditions for his re-appointment as an Independent 
Director as specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and is independent of the management. Based 
on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee and keeping in view the expertise of Mr. Vishnu 
Gopal Rajgarhia, the Board of Directors at its meeting held 
on 06th July, 2019 approved the continuance of office of Mr. 
Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia as mentioned in the resolution.

Brief profile of Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia is given below 
for reference of the member:
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Name of Director Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
Age(Years) 73
Brief Resume/Nature of Expertise in 
functional areas

He is a businessman having rich 
experience of over 40 years. He 
has created many successful 
businesses
in the field of Non Banking Financial 
Companies. He is an expert 
business analyst. Mr Vishnu Gopal 
Rajgarhia is a commerce graduate 
from Calcutta University.

Relationships between directors inter-se None
Directorships held in other Companies 
(excluding foreign companies, private 
companies and companies registered 
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 
2013)

1) B.P Oil Mills Limited
2) Victory Mica Limited
3) Laxmi Mica & Mineral Mining 
Company Private Limited
4) RIKA Specialties Pvt Ltd
5) Parichiti Textiles Pvt Ltd

Memberships/ Chairmanships of com-
mittees of other public companies.

NIL

Shareholding (No. of shares) NIL

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board 
evaluated the performance of Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajrahia , 
rated him satisfactory on all parameters and recommended 
his re-appointment.

Copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of Mr. Vishnu 
Gopal Rajgarhia as an Independent Director setting out the 
terms and conditions is available for inspection by members 
at the Corporate Office of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and / or their relatives except Mr. Vishnu Gopal 
Rajgarhia , to whom the resolution relates, is in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item 
no.4 for the approval of the members.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT	
To,

The Members,

Wellesley Corporation Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the 28th Annual 
Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for 
the year ended 31st March, 2019.

I-	 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	 The highlights of the financial results of the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31,2019 are as 
under:- 

(Figures in Rs)

Particulars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31stMarch, 2018

Revenue from Operations 29,66,700 22,76,296
Other Income 78,368 33,938
Total Revenue 30,45,068 23,10,234
Total Expenses 38,09,904 22,52,712
Profit /loss before Tax Expense (7,64,836) 57,522
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) (51,481) 17,590
Profit /loss for the year (7,13,354) 39,932
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (7,68,188) 21,669
Shareholders Fund 1,36,07,819 1,43,76,008

II-	 REVIEW OF OPERATIONS & BUSINESS UPDATE

	 KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	 Your company has recorded revenue of Rs 30.45 lacs 
in financial year 2018-19 as compared to Rs 23.10 lacs 
in financial year 2017-18.The Company has incurred a 
net loss of Rs7.68Lacs  as compared to net profit of 
Rs0.22 lacs recorded in the last financial year.

	 To conserves the profits, no amount is carried to 
reserves. The company vide resolution passed by 
shareholder through postal ballot has amended its 
object clause on 14/05/2018 and has added hotel 
business in addition to its existing real estate business 
, however the company has not undertaken any activity 
of hotel business during the year under report.

III-	 FUTURE OUTLOOK

	 Your management is exploring every possible 
opportunity to generate revenues with the available 
financial resources of the company to run it as going 
concern, and hoping that the company will be able to 
unlock stuck capital soon as some of the legal cases 
are at advance stage in the courts this in turn will 
improve company’s financials substantially.

lIV-	 DIVIDEND

	 In view of accumulated losses, the Directors do not 
recommend any dividend during the year

V-	 PUBLIC DEPOSITS

	 Your Company had not accepted any Public Deposits 
under Chapter V of the Act
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VI-	 CHANGES IN DIRECTORS & KMP

(a)	 Mrs.Sadhana Rai(Promoter)

	 During the year Mrs. Sadhana Rai  (DIN: 01585720)  
was appointed as an additional director on 22.06.2018 
and further ratified as director by the shareholders in the 
27th Annual General Meeting of the company.	

(b)	 Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-
appointment

	 Mrs. Sadhana Rai, Non-Executive Director, is liable 
to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM, pursuant to 
Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any,of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules,2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), 
the Articles of Association of the Company and 
being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment.
Appropriate resolution for her re-appointment is being 
placed for the approval of the Members of the Company 
at the ensuing AGM. The brief resume of the Director 
and other related information has been detailed in 
the Notice convening the 28th AGM of the Company. 
The Board recommends her re-appointment as Non - 
Executive Director of the Company.

VII-	 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
REPORT	

	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as 
stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e), of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations& 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, read 
with Schedule-V is presented in a separate section 
forming part of the Annual Report.

VIII-	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

	 In terms of Regulation 34 of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on 
Corporate Governance along with Compliance 
Certificate issued by Statutory Auditor’s of the 
Company is attached as Annexure- 1 and forms 
integral part of this Report (hereinafter “Corporate 
Governance Report”).

IX-	 AUDITORS 

	 A-1 	 STATUTORY AUDITORS  

	 	 In terms of the provisons of Section 139 of the 
Companies Act,2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 as amended 
vide the Companies (Amendment) Act,2017 and 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment 
Rules,2018 respectively , M/s M.K Jain & Co 
, Chartered Accountants ,( (ICAI Firm Regn 
No:009694N), the auditors of the Company, 
hold office for a consecutive period of five years 
until the conclusion Thirty First (31st ) Annual 
General Meeting of the company to be held for 

the financial year 2021-22 and their appointment 
is not required to be ratified each year at 
Annual General Meeting of the Company .The 
Auditors have confirmed to the company that 
they continue to remain eligible to hold office 
as the Auditors and not disqualified for being so 
appointed under the Companies Act,2013, the 
Chartered Accountants Act,1949 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder.

	 A-2 	 AUDITORS REPORT 

	 	 The Report given by the statutory auditors for the 
financial year 2018-19 on the financial statement 
of the Company is part of the Annual Report. 
There has been no qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark or disclaimer in their Report. 

	 B-	 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

	 	 The Secretarial Audit was carried out by M/s. 
Vijay Kaul & Co., Company Secretaries (PCS 
Registration No. 4722) for the financial year 
2018-19. The Report given by the Secretarial 
Auditors is annexed as Annexure – 3 and forms 
integral part of this Report. Explanations to their 
qualifications are as under:

		  1)	 CS/CFO-The Company’s financial 
conditions do not allow keeping two separate 
persons for the post of CS & CFO. Mr Sumeer 
Narain Mathur is a qualified Company Secretary 
and MBA-Finance with vast experience in 
handling accounts, finance & taxation at senior 
level apart from handling the company law 
matters .Therefore Board found him suitable to 
hold the position of CFO in addition to the post of 
CS, in compliance  of the requirements u/s 203 
of the Companies Act,2013		

	 	 2)	 BSE vide its notification dated 23rd 
February, 2017 has placed the securities of 
the company (Script Code/Symbol: 532016/
Wellesley) into Graded Surveillance Measure 
(GSM) at its stage -0. Since then neither the 
securities were removed from the surveillance 
nor has the same been moved to any other stage 
of GSM. Further the company has not received 
any clarification/query from Bombay Stock 
Exchange or SEBI with regard to trading of our 
securities at BSE.

		  3)	 The company had woman director Mrs. 
Kirti Gupta, till 11/11/2017, she had resigned 
w.e.f. 11.11.2017.There after the company has 
appointed Mrs Sadhana Rai, Promoter of the 
company as woman director w.e.f   22.06.2018.

	 	 4)	 There is a delay of one month in 
depositing Rs 173/- deducted from the payment 
of contractor (TDS on contractual payments u/s 
194C of the Income Tax Act,1961) as the bills 
were received late from the party. 	
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	 C-	 FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER 
SECTION 143 (12)

	 During the year under review, the Auditors has not 
reported any fraud under Section 143 (12) of the Act, 
therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under 
Section 134 sub section 3(ca) of the Act.

X-	 PARTICUALARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE OR 
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186.

	 The company has neither granted nor provided any 
guarantee or made investment attracting the provisions 
of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

XI-	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY 

	 There were no such material changes and 
commitments occurred between March 31, 2019 and 
the date of board report..

XII-	 INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE 8 OF 
CHAPTER IX OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 A)	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

	 	 In absence of any manufacturing activities, 
no details have been given as required under 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules framed there under. 

	 B)	 TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING ETC

	 	 In absence of any manufacturing activities, 
no details have been given as required under 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules framed there under. 

	 C)	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND 
OUTGO

	 	 There was no foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo during the year.

XIII-	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	 Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5)of 
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

	 a.	 That in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, 
the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures.,

	 b.	 That the Directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company at the end of 
the financial year and of the loss of the company 
for that period.,

	 c.	 That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.,

	 d.	 That the Directors have prepared the annual 
accounts for the financial year ended   March 31, 
2019on a going concern basis., and

	 e.	 That the Directors had laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and 
were operating effectively.,

	 f.	 That the Directors had devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of 
all applicable laws and that such system were 
adequate and operating effectively.

XIV-	 INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

	 In pursuance of section 149 (7) of the Companies Act 
2013, all the Independent Directors have given the 
declaration of their independence complying with the 
criteria as prescribed in section 149(6) and has been 
taken on record.

XV-	 POLICY ON DIRECTORS, KMP& OTHER 
EMPLOYEES APPOINTMENT 

	 The company has already having a nomination and 
remuneration committee to take care of the appointment 
of Directors, KMP & other employees and determining 
their qualifications,attributes ,independence etc.

XVI-	 DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

	 The board has laid down a committee of risk 
management comprising three independent directors 
to lead the same and to manage the risk involved in 
the business of the company.

XVII-	DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION 
OF A POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY.

	 The directors are of the view that at present the 
company doesn’t fall in the category of the specified 
companies abide by the CSR regulations.

XXVIII-DETAILS OF TRAINING IMPARTED TO 		
  INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

	 There has been no specific training programs 
conducted by the board of directors for the Independent 
Directors, however sufficient information about the 
company’s business were provided to them in the 
board meetings itself



Annual Report 2018-19

9Annual Report 2018-19

XIX-	 DETAILS OF VIGIL MECHANISM

	 The company has laid down its vigil mechanism called 
“Whistle Blower Policy“for directors and employees 
to   report to the management instances of unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of 
the company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.This 
mechanism also has provision for direct access to the 
chair person of the Audit Committee Mr. Vishnu Gopal 
Rajgarhia in appropriate or exceptional cases

XX-	 EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES 
AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 

	 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules issued thereunder, Regulation 
17(10) of the Listing Regulations and the circular 
issued by SEBI dated 5th January, 2017 with respect 
to Guidance Note on Board Evaluation, the evaluation 
of the annual performance of the Directors/Board/
Committees was carried out for the financial year 
2018-19.The details of the evaluation process are set 
out in the Corporate Governance Report which forms 
a part of this report.

XXI-	 INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 
4 & 5 OF THE COMPANIES APPOINTMENT & 
REMUNARATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
RULES 2014

	 A detailed disclosure of the information as required is 
attached herewith in the board report as Annexure: 3.  

XXII-	EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

	 Extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9, as 
stipulated under section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, is annexed at the end of the Board Report as 
Annexure: 4.

XXIII-	DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE OR 
ASSOCIATES ENTERED/CEASEDDURING THE 
YEAR 

	 The Company has no Joint Venture Agreement, 
Subsidiary or Associate during the year .

XXIV-DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS 

	 During the year, Six meetings of Board, four 
meetings of the Audit Committee, four meetings of 
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee,and two 
meetings of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
were convened and held. One meeting of Independent 
directors was also held. The details are covered in the 
Corporate Governance report. The intervening gap 
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

XXV-	PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR 
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
REFERRED IN SUB SECTION 188(1) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

	 The details are mentioned in form AOC-2 and annexed 
with this board report as Annexure: 5

XXVI- Cost records

	 The provision for maintenance of cost records as 
specified by the Central Government under sub 
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are not applicable on the Company.

XXVII-Sexual Harassment 

	 Your Company has adopted a policy for the prevention 
of sexual harassment of women at work place and has 
set up a committee for implementation of said policy. 
During the period the Company has not received any 
complaint of sexual harassment.

XXVIII- SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

	 The company has complied with the provisions of 
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Institute of Companies Secretary (ICSI).

XXIX-APPRECIATION 

	 Your Directors desires to place on record their 
appreciation of the support extended by its employees, 
Bankers, Customers and various Government 
Agencies, who through their continued support and 
cooperation helped in the Company’s progress. The 
Board also wishes to thank the shareholders for their 
continuous support and acknowledge the hard work, 
dedication and commitment of the employees.

   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Director:Vishnu Gopal Rajrahia

Din:  00480125
Address:  .C-740, New Friends Colony, 

New Delhi-110065
Managing Director: Gyanendra Prakash

Din: 01444823
Address: House no:749, Sector-5, 
Vasundhara, Ghaziabad-201012

 

Place : New Delhi
Date : 29th May, 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS REPORT
The management of Wellesley Corporation Limited is 
pleased to present its analysis report on the performance 
and future outlook of your company .

Industry Structure & Developments 

F.Y 2018-19 A Roller-Coaster Year for the Industry 

2018 was a veritable roller-coaster ride for the Indian real 
estate. Despite signs of recovery across segments, the 
liquidity crunch – further exacerbated by the NBFC crisis – 
put all industry stakeholders on tenterhooks. Consolidation 
via mergers and acquisitions was rife in all sectors, 
completely redefining the concept of ‘financial health’ among 
players and drawing clear lines on who will survive the heat. 

While the projects of big realtors were put on hold the small 
realtors were unable to even commence their projects due 
to conservative approach of buyers as they are looking for 
more and more lucurative offers, and they are hesitant to 
buy any under construction projects, due to failure in timely 
possession even by some big names in the Industry. Many 
Real Estate Developers and Housing Finance Company’s 
are facing solvancy issues.

Opportunities & Threats

Opportunities

With the emergence of GST and RERA this market 
has become very much open and regulated which 
createsimmence opportunities for the developers to 
construct their projects in a fair and transparent manner.

Threats

Home buyers fate is undertain under Insolvancy & 
Bankcuptcy Code. Public at large has lost faith in the Real 
Estate Developers due to ongoing legal issues of home 
buyers ..

Outlook

During the year under review due to delay in our judiciary 
system non of the ongoing legal cases could be settled 
down, due to which the land bank of the company continued 
to stuck in legal battle. Inspite of adopting the hotel business 
in its object clause the company could not explore any 
opportunity in Hotel Industry due to its poor financials, 
your management is hopefull that during this year some 
of the legal cases may get settled and the financials of the 
company may improve.

Risk & Concerns 

As still the company’s worth is stuck in its land bank which 
is subject to long pending litigations, financial crunche may 
place some barriers in exploring new avenues 

Segment –wise or product wise performance

There is no reportable segment as per IndAS-108, as during 

the year under report the company undertakes its business 
activities only in “Real Estate &Services ” therefore no 
segment wise disclosures are required. 

Internal Control Systems & their adequacy 

The company has placed adequate and effective system 
of internal controls, which are wisely commensurate with 
the nature of business and its scale of operations. Reviews 
of the audit plans, significant audit findings, adequacy of 
internal controls, compliance with accounting standards 
including any changes in that is a regular course of action 
of the company’s Audit committee. The Statutory Auditors 
of the Company have also, in their report to members for 
the financial year ended on 31st March 2019, confirmed the 
adequacy of internal control system of the Company.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to 
operational performance 

The Financial Statement for the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2019 have been prepared in compliance of the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India(Ind AS). The Board of Directors accepts 
the integrity and objectives of these financial statements. 

Your company has recorded revenue of Rs 30.45 lacs in 
financial year 2018-19 as compared to Rs 23.10 lacs in 
financial year 2017-18.The Company has incurred a net 
loss of Rs7.68Lacs  as compared to net profit of Rs0.22 lacs 
recorded in the last financial year.

Material Development in Human Resources 

The company recognizes the fact that manpower is 
the most vital resource for the real estate sector. The 
company ensures that its employees are provided the best 
working environment and compensated with attractive 
remunerations. Beyond rewarding employees with attractive 
remunerations, the company constantly endeavourer to 
create more conducive work environment. Employees are 
encouraged to be innovative and involved to pursue their 
goals which are allied with the larger interest of the company. 
Since the operations of the company are not going on large 
scale presently, therefore, only two employees are employed 
by the company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director: Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
Din:  00480125

Address:  C-740, New Friends Colony, 
New Delhi - 110065 

Managing Director:Gyanendra Prakash
			   Din:01444823
		  Address: House no:749, Sector-5, 

Vasundhara, Ghaziabad-201012 

Place : New Delhi
Date: 29th May 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT                                            
1.	 COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF 

GOVERNANCE:                                    

	 The corporate governance policy of Wellesley 
Corporation Limited (WCL) encompasses the simple 
tenets of integrity, transparency and fairness in 
whatever the company does and what it basically 
aims at achieving is a complete adherence to the 
applicable statutes while at the same time ensuring 
a complete commitment to values and the highest 
ethical standards in every facet of its operations and 
in each of the functional areas. This, in turn, ensures 
that best in the class concept of corporate governance 
practices become a way of life in the Company.

	 In line with the nature and size of operations of the 
Company, the Corporate Governance framework in 
WCL is based on the following main principles:

	 •	 Constitution of a Board of Directors of appropriate 
composition, size, varied experience and 
commitment to discharge their responsibilities 
and duties.

	 •	 Transparency and independence in the functions 
of the Board.

	 •	 Ensuring timely flow of information to the Board 
and its Committees to enable them discharge 
their functions effectively.

	 •	 Independent verification and assured integrity 
of financial reporting. Timely and balanced 
disclosure of all material information related to 
the Company to all stakeholders and protection 
of their rights and interests.

	 •	 A sound system of risk management and internal 
control.

	 •	 Compliance with applicable laws, rules and 
regulations in letter and spirit

2. 	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(A)		  Composition &category of the Board	

	 	 The Board of Directors in WCL has been 
constituted in a manner which ensures 
appropriate mix of executive, non-executive 
and independent directors to ensure proper 
governance and management. The Board 
members have collective experience in diverse 
fields like construction, finance, architecture, 
human resources & hospitality.

	 	 As on March 31, 2019, the Board consist five 
directors, 04of them are non executive&one 
executive. Out of five directors,one director 
is promoter director, three Directors are 
Independent Directors and one Managing 
Director. The details of various directors on 
the Board of the Company, the nature of their 

directorships, the number of directorships held 
by them in other companies and also the number 
of committee memberships or chairmanships 
held by them in other companies (including the 
company )as on March 31, 2019, is depicted in 
the table given below

S.No Name of the 
Director

Category of 
Directorship

No of 
Directorships 
in other 
companies

No of Memberships/
chairmanships in Board 
/committees of various 

companies
(including theCompany)

1. Mr. Gyanendra 
Prakash 

Executive 
Director 

(Managing 
Director)

3 0 0

2. Mr. Deepak Jalan Non Executive
Independent 
Director

2 5 0

3. Mr.Vishnu Gopal 
Rajgarhia

Non Executive
Independent 
Director

5 5 1

4. Mr. Piyush 
Prakash

Non Executive
Independent 
Director

2 5 0

5. Mrs SadhanaRai* Non Executive
Non 

Independent 
, Promoter 
Director

1 0 0

*Appointed w.e.f 22nd June,2018

None of the directors are holding any directorship or 
committee membership in any listed entity.

(B) 		  Details of Board Meetings and the last Annual 
General Meeting and attendance record of 
Directors thereat

	 	 During the FY 2018-19 the Board of WCL met 
6 (Six) times. The dates of the Board meetings 
were 05th April,2018 30th May, 2018 , 22nd 
June,2018, 20th July,2018, 13th November,2018 
and 14th February,2019. One more meeting on 
29thMarch, 2019 was held of the Independent 
Directors of WCL.

	 	 The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
Company was held on 08th September,2018. 

	 	 A table depicting the attendance of Directors 
at various Board Meetings and the AGM held 
during financial year 2018-19:-

S.No Name of the Director No of Board
Meeting Attended

Attendance 
at the

last AGM

1. Mr. Gyanendra Prakash 6 Yes

2. Mr. Deepak Jalan 6 No

3. Mr. Piyush Prakash 4 No

4. Mr.VishnuGopal Rajgarhia 6 Yes 

5. Mrs SadhanaRai* 3 Yes

*Appointed w.e.f 22nd June,2018. 

None of the directors are holding any directorship or 
committee membership in any listed entity.
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	 (c)	  Disclosure of relationship between director’s 
inter-se:-

	 	 The board consists of a Managing Director, 
a non-executive promoter director and three 
independent directors ,therein no inter-se 
relation exists between any of them.

	 (d)	 Number of shares and convertible instruments 
held by non-executive directors:-

	 	 The non executive promoter director Mrs. 
Sadhana Rai holds 74.07% (1,00,00,000 Shares 
) of the share capital of the company & none of 
the other non-executive directors held any shares 
or convertible instruments of the company.

	 (e)	 Website link where the details of familiarization 
programs imparted to independent directors 
is disclosed

	 	 There has been no specific training programs 
conducted by the board of directors for the 
Independent Directors, however sufficient 
information about the company’s business, 
changes in regulatory framework, updates by 
SEBI/BSE/MCA and other regulatory authorities 
were   provided to them in the board meetings 
itself time to time.

	 (f)	 Considering the business and sector of 
the company ,the Board of director of 
the company are having sufficient skills, 
good expertise and are competent enough 
to manage the functions of the company 
effectively .

	 (g) 	 In the opinion of the board, the independent 
directors fulfill the conditions specified in 
these regulations and are independent of the 
management.

	 (h)	 During the year under report none of the 
independent director has resigned from the 
board of the company .

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board constituted committees namely, Audit Committee, 
Nomination &Remuneration Committee,Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee& 
Committee of Directors   to act in accordance with the 
terms of reference determined by the Board. Meetings of 
each of these Committees are convened by the respective 
Chairman. Matters requiring Board’s attention/approval are 
placed before the Board. The role, the composition of these 
Committees including the number of meetings held during 
the financial year 2018-19 and the related attendance detail 
are provided hereunder.

(A) 	 Audit Committee

	 The composition of the Audit Committee is in alignment 
with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The members 
of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have 
experience in financial management.

	 During the financial year 2018-19, the Audit Committee 
met four times. The dates of the meetings being were 
30th May,2018, 20th July, 2018 , 13th November,2018 
& 14th February,2019 

	 The composition of the Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors of the Company along with the details of 
the meetings held and attended during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2019 is detailed below:

Name of Member Designation No of Meet-
ing held

No of 
Meeting 

Attended
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Chairman 4 4
Mr. Deepak Jalan Member 4 4
Mr. Piyush Prakash Member 4 3

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary & Chief 
Financial Officer, acts as the Secretary to the Audit 
Committee. 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, 
include:

1.	 Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process 
and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible;

2.	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

3.	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditor’sreport thereon before 
submission to the board for approval with particular 
reference to :-

	 a.	 matters required to be included in the director’s 
responsibility statement to be included in the 
board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-
section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013;

	 b.	 changes, if any, in accounting policies and 
practices and reasons for the same;

	 c.	 major accounting entries involving estimates 
based on the exercise of judgment by 
management;

	 d.	 significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings;

	 e.	 compliance with listing and other legal 
requirements relating to financial statements;

	 f.	 disclosure of any related party transactions;

	 g.	 modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;.
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5.	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 
financial statements before submission to the board 
for approval;

6.	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of 
uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), 
the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus 
/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of 
a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 
matter;

7.	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8.	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions 
of the company with related parties;Scrutiny of inter-
corporate loans and investments;

9.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10.	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever it is necessary;

11.	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 
management systems;

12.	 Reviewing, with the management, performance 
of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;Reviewing the adequacy of 
internal audit function, if any, including the structure of 
the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of 
the official 

13.	 Heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

14.	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant 
findings and follow up there on;

15.	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations 
by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal 
control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the board;

16.	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern;

17.	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in 
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 
dividends) and creditors;

18.	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower 
mechanism;

19.	 Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the 
qualifications,experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate;

(B) 	 Nomination &Remuneration Committee	

	 The role of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee is governed by its Charter and its 
composition is in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 19 read with 
Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

During the financial year, the committee was met on 30th 
May,2018 and 22nd June,2018 .

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company along 
with the details of the meetings held and attended by the 
members of the Committee during the financial year 2018-
19 is detailed below:

Name of Member Designation No of Meet-
ing held

No of 
Meeting 

Attended
Mr. Deepak Jalan Member 2 2
Mr. Piyush Prakash Member 2 2
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Member 2 2

Mr.Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary, and cheif 
financial officer acts as the Secretary to the Nomination & 
Remuneration committee. 

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of Nomination &Remuneration 
Committee, inter-alia, include:

1.	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes and Independence of a director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to 
the remuneration of the directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees.

2.	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent 
Directors and the Board.

3.	 Devising a policy on Board diversity.

4.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria lay down, 
and recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal. 

5.	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment 
of the independent director, on the basis of the report 
of performance evaluation of independent directors.

I-	 Policy for appointment and removal of Director, 
KMP and Senior Management    

1. 	 Appointment criteria and qualifications 

	 a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the 
integrity, qualification, expertise and experience 
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP 
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or at Senior Management level and recommend 
to the Board for his/her appointment. 

	 b)	  A person should possess adequate qualification, 
expertise and experience for the position he / she 
is considered for appointment. The Committee 
has discretion to decide whether qualification, 
expertise and experience possessed by a person 
is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned 
position. 

2. Term / Tenure 

	 a) 	 Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

	 	 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any 
person as its Executive Chairman, Managing 
Director or Executive Director for a term not 
exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment 
shall be made earlier than one year before the 
expiry of term. 

	 b)	  Independent Director: 

	 -	 An Independent Director shall hold office for a 
term up to five consecutive years on the Board 
of the Company and will be eligible for re-
appointment on passing of a special resolution 
by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report. 

	 -	 No Independent Director shall hold office for 
more than two consecutive terms of five years 
each, but such Independent Director shall be 
eligible for Appointment after expiry of three 
years of ceasing to become an Independent 
Director. Provided that an Independent Director 
shall not, during the said period of three years, be 
appointed in or be associated with the Company 
in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

	 -	 At the time of appointment of Independent 
Director, it should be ensured that number of 
Boards on which such Independent Director 
serves is restricted to seven listed companies 
as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in case 
such person is serving as a Whole-time Director 
of a listed company or such other number as 
may be prescribed under the Act. 

3. 	 Removal 

	 Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned 
in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules 
and regulations thereunder, the Committee may 
recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded 
in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and 
compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

4.	  Retirement 

	 The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The 
Board has the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, 
Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ 
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the 
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

5 	 Remuneration to Whole-time/ Executive / Managing 
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 

	 a) 	 Fixed pay: 

	 	 The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 
monthly remuneration as may be approved by the 
Board on the recommendation of the Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee. The breakup of the 
pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, 
employer’s contribution to P.F, pension scheme, 
medical expenses, etc. shall be decided and 
approved by the Board/ the Person authorized 
by the Board on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the shareholders and Central 
Government, wherever required. 

	 b) 	 Minimum Remuneration: 

	 	 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay 
remuneration to its Managing Director in accordance 
with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and if it 
is not able to comply with such provisions, with the 
previous approval of the Central Government. 

	 c) 	 Provisions for excess remuneration: 

	 	 If any Managing Director /Whole Time Director 
draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way 
of remuneration any such sums in excess of the 
limits prescribed under the Act or without the 
prior sanction of the Central Government, where 
required, he / she shall refund such sums to the 
Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it 
in trust for the Company. 

	 	 The Company shall not waive recovery of such 
sum refundable to it unless permitted by the 
Central Government. 

6 	 Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent 
Director: C

	 a) 	 Sitting Fees: The Non- Executive / Independent 
Director may receive remuneration by way 
of fees for attending meetings of Board or 
Committee thereof. 

	 b) 	 Stock Option: Independent Director shall not be 
entitled to any stock option of the Company.
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7 	 Details of Directors’ Remuneration

	 (i) 	 Remuneration of Executive Director : The 
table given below specifies the details of 
remuneration package of Executive Directorsand 
their relationship with other Directors on the 
Board:

(Rupees per Annum)

Name of the 
Director

Relationship 
with other 
directors

Salary &
Allowances

Monitory
 Value of 

Perquisites

Total

Mr. Gyanendra 
Prakash *

None 2,40,000 Nil 2,40,000

Notes:

1. 	 Components of the salary includes the Basic salary, 
House rent allowance as per the Company rules.

2. 	 The terms and conditions of service of Executive 
Directors are contractual in nature and are governed 
by applicable rules and policy of the Company.

3.	 All the components of salary are fixed in nature and 
there is no variable component.

4.	  There are no stock option has been given/exercise by 
the Executive directors. 

	 (ii) 	 Remuneration of Non-Executive Independent 
Directors 

	 	 Non-Executive Independent Directors have 
been paid only sitting fees during the financial 
year 2018-19 as mentioned in their terms of 
appointment placed on the website of the 
company .

II-	 Board Level Performance Evaluation 

	 Listing Regulations mandate the Board of listed 
companies to monitor and review the Board Evaluation 
framework. The Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Rules issued thereunder further provides that a formal 
annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of 
its own performance and that of its Committees and 
individual Directors. The Schedule IV of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder 
states that the performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 
excluding the Director being evaluated. After taking 
into consideration the Guidance Note on Performance 
Evaluation of Board dated 5thJanuary, 2017 published 
by SEBI, controlled  evaluations forms were finalized 
to evaluate the performance of the Board, Committees 
of the Board and individual performance of each 
Director including the Chairman.

	 The process for performance evaluation is as under:-

	 •	 Committee of Independent Directors evaluates 	
	 the performance of Non Independent Directors 	

	 and the Board as a whole and submits its report to 	
	 the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

	 •	 The Board evaluates the performance of 	 	
	 Independent Directors and submits its report to 	
	 the Nomination & Remuneration 	 	 	
	 Committee. 

	 •	 Nomination & Remuneration committee reviews 	
	 the report of the Committee of Independent 	 	
	 Directors and Board and accordingly 	 	
	 recommends the appointment/re-appointment /	
	 continuation of Directors to the Board.

The criteria for performance evaluation are as under:-

The Directors are evaluated based on various aspects 
which, amongst other parameters, included qualifications, 
experience, knowledge and competency, ability to function 
as a team, fulfillment of functions ,the level of participation 
of the Directors, etc.

The parameters for performance evaluation of Board 
includes structure of the Board, competency of directors, 
experience of directors, mix of qualifications, diversity 
and the process of appointment to the Board of directors, 
role & responsibilities, strategy & performance evaluation, 
governance and compliances, evaluation of risks corporate 
culture ,grievances redressal for investors etc.

Some of the performance indicators for the Committees 
include regularity of meeting, logistics, agenda items, 
discussion & dissent, recording of minutes & dissemination 
of Information.

The Committee ensures that the Key Performance 
Objectives are aligned with the immediate and long term 
goals of the Company.

The performance of the Independent Directors was also 
evaluated taking into account their independent views 
and judgements in addition to the points on which non-
independent directors are evaluated.

(C)	  Stakeholders Relationship Committee

	 The composition of the Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee is in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 20 of the 
Listing Regulations 

	 During the financial year 2018-19, the Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee of Directors met four times. 
The dates of the meetings being 30th May,2018, 
20th July, 2018 , 13th November,2018, & 14th 
February,2019.

	 The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 
along with the details of the meetings held and 
attended by the members of the Committee during the 
financial year 2018-19 is detailed below:
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Name of Member Designation No of Meet-
ings held

No of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Member 4 4
Mr. Deepak Jalan Member 4 4
Mr. Piyush Prakash Member 4 3

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary & Chief 
Financial Officer, acts as the Secretary to the Stakeholders 
Grievance Committee..

Name and designation of Compliance Officer& Chief 
Financial Officer

Mr.Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary& Chief 
Financial officer, is the Compliance Officer pursuant to 
regulation 6(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 .

During the year under report there was no shareholder 
complaint was received and resolved.

(D) 	 Committee of Directors 

	 The constitution of the Committee of Directors of the 
Company along with the details of the meetings held 
and attended by the members of the Committee during 
the financial year 2018-19 is detailed below:

Name of Member Designation No of Meet-
ings Held

No of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Member NIL NIL
Mr. Deepak Jalan Member NIL NIL
Mr. Piyush Prakash Member NIL NIL

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary & Chief 
Financial Officer, acts as the Secretary to the Committee of 
Directors. Terms of Reference

Terms of Reference

The main term of reference is to approve the share transfers/
split/renewal of old certificates, however the same has been 
delegated to Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary 
of the company for effective implementation of transfer/
split/demat/remat process and compliance of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,

(E)	  Risk Management Committee 

	 The Board of Directors has constituted a Risk 
Management Committee and defined its roles and 
responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of 
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.

	 The composition of the Risk Management Committee 
of the Board of Directors of the Company along with 
the details of the meetings held and attended by the 
members of the Committee during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2019 is detailed below:

Name of Member Designation No of Meet-
ings Held

No of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Member NIL NIL

Mr. Deepak Jalan Member NIL NIL

Mr. Piyush Prakash Member NIL NIL

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary & 
Chief Financial officer, acts as the Secretary to the Risk 
Management Committee.

Terms of Reference

1.	 Oversee and approve the risk management, internal 
compliance and control policies and procedures of 
the Company (including reporting and internal audit 
systems), in concurrence with existing business 
processes and systems, to manage the Company’s 
material business risks

2.	 Establish policies for the monitoring and evaluation of 
risk management systems to assess the effectiveness 
of those systems in minimizing risks that may impact 
adversely on the business objectives of the Company.

3.	 Be aware and concur with the Company’s Risk 
Appetite including risk levels, if any, set for financial 
and operational risks.

4.	 Ensure that the Company is taking appropriate 
measures to achieve prudent balance between 
risk and reward in both ongoing and new business 
activities.

5.	 Review the existing risk Management System of the 
Company in view of the Company’s Risk Appetite.

6.	 Coordinate its activities with the Audit Committee 
in instances where there is any overlap with audit 
activities. For example, internal or external audit issue 
relating to risk management policy or practice.

7.	 Provide guidance to the Board on making the 
Company’s risk management policies and procedures 
publicly available and, if appropriate, liaise with the 
Company Secretary on announcements to the market 
where material business risks or changes to those 
risks are likely to have a material impact on the price 
or value of the Company’s securities.

8.	 Perform such other activities related to this 
Memorandum as requested by the Board of Directors.

(F) 	 Independent Directors

	 During the year under repor the Independent Directors 
were met one time only on 29th March,2019 .The 
composition of Independent Directors along with 
the details of the meetings held and attended by the 
directors during the financial year ended 31st March, 
2019 is detailed below:
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Name of Member Designation No of Meet-
ings Held

No of 
Meetings 
attended

Mr.   Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia Member 1 1
Mr.   Deepak Jalan Member 1 1
Mr.   Piyush Prakash Member 1 1

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur, Company Secretary & Chief 
Financial officer, acts as the Secretary for the meeting of 
Independent Directors.

Terms of Reference

In compliance to regulation 25 (4) of the listing regulations 
the terms of reference of the Independent Directors are:- 

a)	 Review the performance of non-independent directors 
and the board as a whole.

b)	 Review the performance of the chairperson of the 
company, taking into account the views of executive 
directors and non-executive directors.

c)	 Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the company management & the 
board.

Based on the evaluation criteria laid down by the Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee for the non executive directors, 
the Managing Directors & the Board as a whole has been 
evaluated and a report thereon has been submitted to the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee for their reference 
and further recommended for reappointments if any.

4. 	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(A)	 Location and time, where last three Annual General 
Meetings were held:-

Financial Year 
(ended)

Venue Date Time

March,31,2016 Country Inn Hotel & Resorts, 
Mehragoan Bhimtal-249179, 
Uttarakhand.

09.09.2016 10:30 A.M

March,31,2017 Country Inn Hotel & Resorts, 
Mehragoan Bhimtal-249179, 
Uttarakhand.

08.09.2017 10:30 A.M

March,31,2018 Country Inn Hotel & Resorts, 
Mehragoan Bhimtal-249179, 
Uttarakhand.

08.09.2018 10:00 A.M

(B)	 Details of Special Resolution passed in previous 
three AGMs

Sr. 
No.

AGM 
Number

Date of 
AGM

Matter Cover by special resolution

1. 25th AGM Sept 09,2016 Special Resolution according consent 
to appoint Mr Gyanendra Prakash 
(DIN:01444823) as the Managing 
Director of the company .

(C)	 Postal Ballot 

	 (i) 	Special resolutions passed through Postal 	
	 Ballot during the FY 2018-19: 

	 During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has 
passed the following resolution through postal ballots. 
Mr Vijay Kumar Kaul, Practising Company Secretary 
has conducted the Postal Ballot exercise.

Sl 
No. Agenda Matter Cover by special 

resolution

1
Amendment to Main Object 
Clause of the Memorandum of 
Association

Special Resolution to amend 
the main object clause of the 
company.

2

Adoption of new set of 
Memorandum of Association as 
per provisions of the Companies 
Act,2013

Special Resolution to adopt 
new set of Memorandum of 
Association as per Table “A” .

3

Adoption of new set of Memo-
randum of Association as per 
provisions of the Companies 
Act,2013

Special Resolution to adopt 
new set of Articles of Associa-
tion as per Table “F” .

(ii) 	 Procedure for Postal Ballot

	 For conducting a postal ballot, notice specifying the 
resolutions proposed to be passed through postal 
ballot as also the relevant explanatory statement 
and the postal ballot forms, are dispatched to all the 
shareholders along with self addressed postage pre-
paid envelope. 

	 The shareholders are requested to send back the 
postal ballot forms duly filled up and signed, in the 
postage pre-paid envelopes provided to them by the 
Company, so as to reach the Scrutinizer (in whose 
name the envelopes are marked) on or before the 30th 
day from the date of issue of notice by the company. 
The Scrutinizer compiles the postal ballot result out 
of the postal ballot forms found valid and hands over 
the results to the Managing Director. The Chairman 
thereupon declares the result of the postal ballot 
and the same is displayed on a notice board at the 
corporate office of the Company.

5. 	 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

(i) 	 Quarterly Results: 

	 The quarterly/annual financial results of the Company 
are intimated to the Bombay Stock Exchange wherein 
the company is listed,within the prescribed time period 
my means of uploading the same on the listing portal 
i.e www.listing.bseindia.com a CFDS prescribed by 
the Bombay Stock Exchange.

(ii) 	 News, Release etc.: 

	 The quarterly /annual results are usually published 
in the leading newspapers viz; Financial Express 
and regional news paper, Rozanaof the place of the 
registered office of the company.

(iii)	 Website: 

	 The Company has its own website www.wellesleycorp.
com,and all vital information relating to the Company 
and its performance including financial results are 
regularly posted on the website

6	 GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

	 (a)	 Date, Time and Venue of AGM

DATE: 28th August, 2019
TIME: 10:00 AM
VENUE: Country Inn Hotels & Resorts, Mehragaon,Bhimtal,Uttara-
khand-248179
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	 (b)	 Date of book closure: From 25th August,2019 
to 27th August,2019 .                 

	 (c)	 Dividend Payment date: No dividend is 
declared during the financial year. 

	 (d)	 Listing on Stock Exchange 

Stock Exchange Stock Code ISIN
Bombay Stock 
Exchange (BSE)

532106 INE176O01011

	 Listing fees to Bombay Stock Exchange has been paid 
for the financial year 2019-20

	 (e) 	 Stock Code/ ISIN: BSE:532016/ ISIN:INE176O01011

	 (f)	 Stock market price at Bombay Stock 		
	 Exchange (BSE)

Month High (Rupees) Low (Rupees) Volume
APRIL 9.50 9.03 100
MAY 8.60 6.80 1549
JUNE 7.00 7.00 23
JULY 7.00 7.00 NIL
AUG 7.00 7.00 NIL
SEPT 7.00 7.00 NIL
OCT 7.00 7.00 NIL
NOV 7.00 7.00 NIL
DEC 7.00 7.00 NIL
JAN 7.00 7.00 NIL
FEB 7.00 7.00 NIL

MARCH 7.00 7.00 NIL

	 (g)	 Performance Comparison to broad bases 
indices BSE Sensex.

	

	

	 (h)	 Registrar & Transfer Agent
		  M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
	 	 (Unit- Wellesley Corporation Limited)
	 	 D-153A, Ist Floor Okhla Industrial Area,
	 	 Phase-I, New Delhi – 110 020
	 	 Tel: - +91 – 11 – 2681-2682, 2681-2683
	 	 Fax: - +91 – 11 – 3085 7562
	 	 Email: admin@skylinert a.com

	 (i) 	 Share Transfer System
	 	 All queries pertaining to share transfer / 

transmission, change of address, bank 
mandate, nomination forms, loss of shares, 
issue of duplicate shares, Annual Report may 

be forwarded directly to the Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent at the above mentioned address.

	 (j) 	   Distribution of shareholding as on March 	
	    31,2019

Share or 
Debenture
 holding 
Nominal 

Value

Number 
of Share-
holders

% to 
Total 

Numbers

Share or 
Debenture 

holding 
Amount

% to 
Total 

Amount

(Rs.) (Rs.)
Up  To 5,000 1,789 90.67 23,47,380 1.74

5001 To 10,000 126 6.39 11,61,600 0.86
10001 To 20,000 17 0.86 2,64,500 0.2
20001 To 30,000 9 0.46 2,15,000 0.16
30001 To 40,000 3 0.15 1,06,000 0.08
40001 To 50,000 0 0 0 0

50001 To 1,00,000 5 0.25 3,84,000 0.28
1,00,000 and Above 24 1.22 13,05,25,520 96.68

Total 1,973 100.00 13,50,04,000 100.00

	 (k) 	 Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity 

	 	 Equity shares of the company are available in 
both physical as well in demat mode at both 
the depositories i.e. NSDL & CDSL(ISIN No 
INE176O01011). As on March 31, 2019, 84.94% 
Equity shares of the Company representing 
1,14,68,300 shares out of a total of 1,35,00,400 
Equity shares, were held in dematerialized form 
and the balance 20,32,100 shares were held in 
physical form.Depository fees have been paid to 
NSDL & CDSL for the financial year 2019-20.

	 (l)	 Outstanding GDR’s /ADRs/Warrants or any 
Convertible instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity.		

	 	 There was no GDR/ADR/Warrants/Convertible 
instruments were issued and pending for 
conversion.

	 (m)	 Address for Investor’s correspondence:

Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Company Secretary & Chief Financial Officer
a. Address B- 210, Ansal Chamber – I,BhikajiCama Place, 

New Delhi – 110066
b. Phone No.

Fax No.
91-11-26184535
91-11-26193448

c. Email id investor@wellesleycorp.com
cs@wellesleycorp.com

	 (n) 	 Letters to Shareholders seeking KYC details 
	 	 During the year under report SEBI vide circular 

No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR /P/ 2018/73 
dated 20-04-2018,required that the company 
to obtain copy of PAN Card, Bank details, 
Email id and Mobile / Telephone No from all the 
shareholders holding shares in physical form, 
accordingly the company has sent three letters 
to its shareholders on 18/07/2018, 13/08/2018 
and 12/11/2018. Out of total letters sent many 
were returned undelivered, the company has 
maintained a data base of the same for record 
and future reference.
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	 (o)	 Details of directors seeking appointment or 
reappointment:-

	 	 Mrs Sadhana Rai,Director (DIN:01585720) who 
was appointed as the director of the company  at 
the 27th Annual General Meeting ,is subject to 
retire by rotation and seeking reappointment.

7)	  DISCLOSURE
	 (i)	 Materially Significant Related Party Transaction

	 	 There has been no materially significant related 
party transaction.

	 (ii)	 Details of Non-Compliance by the Company, 
penalties imposed by Stock Exchange/ 
SEBI/ Any Statutory Authority in any matter 
related to Capital Market during the last three 
years.	

	 	 (a)  	 There has been no instance of any non-
compliance by the Company on any matter 
related to capital markets, and hence, no 
penalties or strictures have been imposed 
on the Company by SEBI or the Stock 
Exchanges or any other statutory authority 
on any such matter.

	 	 (b)	 The Company has paid listing fee to 
Bombay Stock Exchange for the financial 
year 2019-20.

	 (iii)	 The company has formulated a “WCL Whistle 
Blower Policy” headed by the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee Mr.Vishnu Gopal 
Rajgarhia, wherein everyone is at the liberty 
to raise their concern to the chairman.

	 (iv)	 The company is following all the mandatory 
requirements of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements 
),Regualtions,2015 and with regards to 
discretionary requirements as mentioned in 
Part :E of schedule-II, it is in the process to 
comply in near future.

	 (v)	 Disclosures in relation to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013: During the year under report the 
company has not received any complaint or 
any other matter wherein the provisions of 
this Act needs to be invoked.

		  ANNUAL DECLARATION BY THE CEO 
PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE V (D) OF SEBI 
(LODR) REGULATIONS,2015 

	 	 As provided under Regulation 34(3) read with 
Para D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,2015 
it is stated that all members of the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel 
of the Company have affirmed compliance 
with the Company’s Code of Conduct of Board 
of Directors and Senior Management, for the 
financial year ended March 31,2019.

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director: Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
Din:  00480125

Address:  C-740, New Friends Colony, 
New Delhi - 110065 

Managing Director:  Gyanendra Prakash
Din: 01444823

Address: House no:749, Sector-15, 
Vasundhara, Ghaziabad-201012

Place : New Delhi
Date: 29th May, 2019
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Annexure: 1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

THE MEMBERS OF

WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED

1.	 We have examined the compliance of regulations of Corporate Governance by Wellesley Corporation Limited (‘the 
Company’) for the year ended March 31,2019 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 
46(2), and paragraphs C,D and E OF Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015( the ‘Listing Regulations’).

	 Management’s Responsibility 

2.	 The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. This responsibility 
includes the designing ,implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure compliance 
with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

	 Auditor’s Responsibility

3.	 Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance in the 
form of and opinion as to whether the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stated 
in paragraph 2 above. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted 
by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4.	 We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable General Accepted Auditing 
Standards in India, the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificate for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which 
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

	 Opinion 

5.	 Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
provided to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied in all material respects, with the conditions of corporate 
governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31,2019 . We state that such 
compliance is an assurance neither as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficient or effectiveness with 
which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company .

	 Restrictions on use

6.	 This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and may not be suitable for 
any other purpose.

For M.K Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

	                                                                                    

          Sakshi Arora
Date:29th May,2019	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	  Partner
Place: New Delhi	 	 	 	 	 	 	 M No.F-528300

Fr no:009694N
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Annexure: 2 
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

We, Gyanendra Prakash,Managing Director & Sumeer Narain Mathur,Company Secretary &Chief Financial Officer of 
Wellesley Corporation Limited, certify to the Board that:

a)	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2019 and that to the best 
of their knowledge and belief :

	 i.	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading ;

	 ii.	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and comply with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year that 
are fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the company’s code of conduct.

c)	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have evaluated the effectiveness 
of the internal control systems of the company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, 
deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps they have taken 
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d)	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that – 

	 i.	 There has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year under 
reference;

	 ii.	 There has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year under requiring disclosure in 
the notes to the financial statements; and

	 iii.	 There has not been any instances during the year of significant fraud of which we had become aware and the 
Involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s 
internal control system over financial reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

Managing Director: Gyanendra Prakash 
Din: 01444823 

Address: House no:749, Sector-15, 
Vasundhara Ghaziabad -201012.

Company Secretary & 
Chief Financial Officer: Sumeer Narain Mathur

Membership no: FCS9042

Address: Houseno:04, Seemant Vihar, Behind 
Radisson Hotel, Kaushambi, Ghaziabad-201014

Place : New Delhi 
Date: 29th May, 2019
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Annexure: 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,

The Members,

Wellesley Corporation Limited

Uttarakhand

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Wellesley Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of secretarial audit , we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Wellesley 
Corporation Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of the following:

1.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

3.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):-

	 a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

	 b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

	 c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

	 f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

	 g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit Period);

	 h.	 The  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period);
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6.	 Other Applicable Laws

	
i The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
ii. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
iii. Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952
iv. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
v. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
vi. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
vii. Income Tax Act 1961, & rules made thereunder
viii. Negotiable Instrument, 1881
ix. Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
x. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
xi. The Apprentices Act, 1961
xii. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
xiii. The Child Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
xiv. Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution), 1974 and rules thereunder
xv. Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and rules thereunder
xvi. The Indian Stamp Act, 1889
xvii. Indian Contract Act, 1872
xviii. Transfer of Property Act, 1882
xix. Indian Registration Act, 1808
xx. Indian Evidence Act, 1872
xxi. The Consumer Protection Act, 1986
xxii. Building & Construction Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1996
xxiii. Goods & Services Tax Act 2017
xxiv. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal ) Act, 2013

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following

	 (i)	  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

	 (ii) 	 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015;

	 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

	 1.	 The Company has appointed the present incumbent, who is an MBA (Finance) besides ACS, Company Secretary 
(CS) as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) also as required under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule (8) of Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014. We were informed that the 
company’s financial position does not allow keeping two separate persons as CS and CFO.

	 2.	 The Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) has, vide public notice no: 20170223-44 dated 23rd February, 2017, placed 
the securities of company under the Graded Surveillance Measure (GSM- Stage-0). As on the date of this report, 
the company continues to be in (GSM – Stage – 0). 

	 3.	 MrsSadhana Rai, promoter of the company, has been appointed by the company w.e.f 22.06.2018 as woman 
director. The company had no woman director since the resignation of MrsKirti Gupta w.e.f 11.11.2017 till the 
date of appointment of MrsSadhana Rai i.e from 11.11.2017 till 22.06.2018, in terms of Proviso 2 to Sub Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies Act,2013 (Appointment of Directors and 
Qualifications ), Rules 2014.

	 4.	 There was a delay of one month in depositing TDS of Rs 173/- during the quarter ended on 30th June, 2018.  
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	 (a)	 As per the information and explanations provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we report that the provisions of the Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of:

	 	 i.	 External Commercial Borrowings were not attracted to the Company under the financial year under report;

	 	 ii.	 Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) were not attracted to the company under the financial year under report;

	 	 iii.	 Overseas Direct Investment by Residents in Joint Venture / Wholly Owned Subsidiary abroad were not 
attracted to the company under the financial year under report.

	 (b)	 As per the information and explanations provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we report that the Company has not made any GDRs/
ADRs or any Commercial Instrument under the financial year under report.

	 (c)	 During the year under review the company has changed its Memorandum of Association and has amended its 
Articles of Association in line with the table “F” in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. The approval of 
shareholders was obtained through Postal Ballot.

	 We have relied on the information and representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and 
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, and Regulations to the 
Company.

	 We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at 
Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously/ as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of 
the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

	 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

	 We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

	 i.	 Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.

	 ii.	 Redemption / buy-back of securities

	 iii.	 Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section180 of the Companies Act, 2013

	 iv.	 Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

	 v.	 Foreign technical collaborations

For Vijay Kaul and Co.

 

Vijay K Kaul 

Place: Delhi 	 Practicing Company Secretary

Date : 29th May, 2019	 	 FCS No.:2719; C P No.:4722                                                                                              

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ which forms 
an integral part of this report.
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‘ANNEXURE A’

To,
The Members,
WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED
Uttarakhand

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.	 Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

                                                                           

For Vijay Kaul and Co

	   Vijay K Kaul 
Place: New Delhi	 Signature: 
Date : 29th May, 2019	 	 Practicing Company Secretary

FCS No.:2719; C P No.:4722
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 Annexure: 4

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 4 & 5 OF THE 
COMPANIES APPOINTMENT & REMUNARATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL RULES 2014

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Remarks

A The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
medianremuneration of the employees of the company for 
the financialyear;

Managing Director-16.69%

B The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, 

Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year

Managing Director: - NIL

Company Secretary:- 9.89%

C  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year;

Company Secretary:- 7.92%

D The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
company;

2

E The explanation on the relationship between average 
increase in remuneration and company performance;

As per Industry Standards

F Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial 
Personnel against the performance of the company;

Satisfactory

G Variations in the market capitalization of the company, 
price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current 
financial year and previous financial year and percentage
 increase over decrease in the market quotations of the
 shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which
 the company came out with the last public offer in case of 
listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the 
variations in the net worth of the company as at the close 
of the current financial year and previous financial year;

31st 
March, 2019

31st
March, 2018

a) Market Capitalization
b) PE  ratio
c) Increase over last 
    public offer

9,45,02,800      -

(26.31%)

12,82,53,800    -

5%

H Average percentile increase already made in the salaries 
of Employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and  justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration;

Not Applicable

I Comparison of the each remuneration of the Key 
Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
company;

Average remuneration of KMP, increase by 10% 
where as revenue increased by 132%

J The key parameters for any variable  component of 
remuneration availed by the directors;

Not Applicable

K The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director 
to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during 
the year;

22.47%

L Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration 
policy of the company.

Yes the remuneration is as per Company’s policy 



Annual Report 2018-19

27Annual Report 2018-19

Annexure: 5

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

 as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019
[[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

i)	 CIN:-L45202UR1991PLC000604

ii)	 RegistrationDate: 23-10-1991

iii)	 NameoftheCompany: WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED

iv)	 Category/Sub-CategoryoftheCompany: PUBLIC LISTED COMPANY

v)	 AddressoftheRegisteredofficeandcontactdetails 

	 Shop#1, Country Inn, Mehragaon, Bhimtal, Uttarakhand-248179

vi)    Whetherlistedcompany       Yes

vii)   Name,AddressandContactdetailsofRegistrarandTransferAgent,ifany

		  M/s. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

	 	 (Unit- Wellesley Corporation Limited)

	 	 D-153A, Ist Floor Okhla Industrial Area,

		  Phase-I, New Delhi – 110 020

		  Tel: - +91 – 11 – 2681-2682, 2681-2683

		  Fax: - +91 – 11 – 3085 7562

		  Email: admin@skylinerta.com

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description  of
main products / 
services

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service

%  to total turnover
 of the company

1 Real Estate Services 9972 100

III.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING,SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –NOT APPLICABLE.
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the  
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at  
the end of the year

Change %

1 Demat Physical Total %of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total %of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 10000000 - 10000000 74.07 74.07 - 10000000 74.07 74.07
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c)  State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d)  Bodies Corp. - - 10000000 74.07 - - - - (74.07)
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f)  Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total  
(A) (1):- 10000000 0 10000000 74.07 10000000 NIL 10000000 74.07 NIL
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - - - -
b) Other – Individuals - - - - - - - - -
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
e) Any Other…. - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (2):- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total Shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)(2) 10000000 0 10000000 74.07 10000000 0 10000000 74.07 NIL
B. Public Shareholding
1 Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -
g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -
h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - -

i)  Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - - -
2. Non- Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 640790 1327200 1967990 14.58 640790 934500 1575290 11.66 (2.92%)
ii) Overseas NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
b) Individuals
i) Individual hareholders  
holding nominal share  
capital upto Rs. 2 lakh 67596 373700 441296 3.28 68643 372200 440843 3.28 (0.00)
ii) Individual hareholders  
holding nominal share  
capital in excess of Rs 
2 lakh 757278 332700 1089978 8.07 757662 725400 1483062 10.99 2.92%
c) Others(specify)
1) Hindu Undivided Family 1136 0 1136 0.01 1205 0 1205 0.01 0
2) Clearing Members 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL
Sub-total (B)(2):- 1466800 2033600 3500400 25.93 1468300 2032100 3500400 25.93 NIL
Total Public Sharehold-
ing (B)= 
(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 1466800 2033600 3500400 25.93 1468300 2032100 3500400 25.93 NIL
C. Shares held by Custo-
dian for GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 1,14,54,000 20,46,400 1,35,00,400 25.93 1,14,66,800 20,33,600 1,35,00,400 25.93 NIL
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(ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

Share holding at the end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

Encumbered
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

Encumbered
to total 
shares

%change in 
share hold-

ing 
during the 

year
1 SADHANA RAI 10000000 74.07 NIL 10000000 74.07 NIL 74.07

Total 10000000 74.07 NIL 10000000 74.07 NIL NIL

iiii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (pleasespecify, if there is no change): No Change 

(iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 
ADRs):

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
1 M/s High Scale Properties Pvt Limited

At the beginning of the year 349900 2.59 349900 2.59
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 349900 2.59
At the End  of the year 349900 2.59 349900 2.59

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
2 M/s P. Saha InfoTech Pvt Limited

At the beginning of the year 290490 2.15 290490 2.15
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 290490 2.15
At the End  of the year 290490 2.15 290490 2.15

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
3 M/s Lokjeet Investments & Finance Pvt Ltd  

At the beginning of the year 263200 1.95 263200 1.95
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 263200 1.95
At the End  of the year  263200 1.95 263200 1.95

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
4 M/s Prjapati Electricals & Electronics Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year 226900 1.68 226900 1.68
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year 
30.03.2019 (Transfer of Shares) (226900) (1.68) NIL NIL

At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
5 M/s Sagadh Engineering Pvt Limited

At the beginning of the year 226900 1.68 226900 1.68
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 226900 1.68
At the End  of the year 226900 1.68 226900 1.68

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
6 M/s Austere General Trades Pvt Limited

At the beginning of the year 226900 1.68 226900 1.68
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year  NIL NIL 226900 1.68
At the End  of the year 226900 1.68 226900 1.68

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
7 Mr. Harishankar Pal

At the beginning of the year 172300 1.28 172300 1.28
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 172300 1.28
At the End  of the year 172300 1.28 172300 1.28

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
8 M/s Intent Marketing Pvt Ltd

At the beginning of the year 165800 1.23 165800 1.23
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year 
30.03.2019 (Transfer of Shares) (165800) (1.23) NIL NIL

At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
9 Mrs. Meena Paul

At the beginning of the year 160400 1.19 160400 1.19
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 160400 1.19
At the End  of the year 160400 1.19 160400 1.19

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
10 Mr. Sardari Lal

At the beginning of the year 130300 0.97 130300 0.97
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL 130300 0.97
At the End  of the year 130300 0.97 130300 0.97
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Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
11 Mr.Sanjay Kumar Yadav

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year 
30.03.2019 (Transfer of Shares) 226900 1.68 226900 1.68

At the End  of the year 226900 1.68 226900 1.68

Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
12 Mr. DurgaNand Yadav

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year 
30.03.2019 (Transfer of Shares)

165800 1.23 165800 1.23

At the End  of the year 165800 1.23 165800 1.23
(v) 	 Shareholding of Directors and key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.  
No.

Director’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
1 Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sl.  
No.

Director’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
2 Mr. Deepak Jalan

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sl.  
No.

Director’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
3 Mr. Piyush Prakash

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sl.  
No.

Director’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
4 Mrs. Sadhana Rai

At the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000 74.07 1,00,00,000 74.07
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the End  of the year 1,00,00,000 74.07 1,00,00,000 74.07
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Sl.  
No.

Director’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
5 Mr. Gyanendra Prakash  

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sl.  
No.

CS and CFO Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 

company
6 Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur  

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Transactions (Purchase/Sale ) during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
At the End  of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

V. 	 INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits
Unsecured Loans Deposits Total

Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial year
•   Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL
•   Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL
Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.	  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl.  
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD /
WTD / Manager

Total
Amount

Mr. Gyanandra Prakash
1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2,40,000
NIL 
NIL

2,40,000
NIL 
NIL

2. Stock Option NIL NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL
4. Commission

-   as % of profit
-   others, specify…

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL
Total (A) 2,40,000 2,40,000 
Ceiling as per the Act 30 Lacs 30 Lacs
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B.	 Remuneration to other directors:

Sl.  
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount

Mr. Vishnu 
Gopal 

Rajgarhia

Mr. Deepak
Jalan

Mr.Piyush
 Prakash 

Mrs.Sadhana 
Rai

1 Independent Directors
• Fee for attending board committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify

 
14000 
NIL 
NIL

 
14000 
NIL 
NIL

 
10000 
NIL 
NIL

 
6000 
NIL 
NIL

 
44000 
NIL 
NIL

Total (1) 14000 14000 10000 6000 44000
2 Other Non-Executive Directors

• Fee for attending board committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL

 
NIL 
NIL 
NIL

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (B)=(1+2) 14000 14000 10000 6000 44000
Total Managerial Remuneration 2.84 Lacs
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 84 lacs

C. 	 Remuneration to key managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl.  
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS & CFO

Sumeer Narain 
Mathur

Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)  
     of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

 
NIL 

 
NIL 
NIL

 
10,88,000 

NIL 
NIL

 
10,88,000

NIL 
NIL

2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4 Commission

-   as % of profit
-   others, specify…

NIL NIL NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL 10,88,000 10,88,000

VII. 	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief Description of
Penalty

Details of Punish-
ments /

Compounding Fees

Authority RD / 
NCLT / COURT

Appeal Made 
(If any )

A. COMPANY
Penalty N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Punishment N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Compounding N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Punishment N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Compounding N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Punishment N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
Compounding N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
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Annexure: 6

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188 
(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Form No. AOC – 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transac-
tions under thirdproviso thereto

1.
Details of contracts or arrangements or transac-
tions not at arm’s length basis

The Company has not entered into any contract or arrange-
ment or transaction with its related parties, which is not at 
arm’s length during the year ended on March 31,2019

2.
Details of material contracts or arrangement or 
transactions at arm’s length basis

The Company has not entered into any contract or arrange-
ment or transaction with its related parties, which is at arm’s 
length during the year ended on March 31,2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To 

the Members of Wellesley Corporation Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Wellesley Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2019, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, (changes in equity)5 and cash flows of the Company in accordance with6 the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregu larities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
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individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

	 2.	 As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

	 b)	 in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 

	 c)	 the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes 
in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts), Rules,2014.

	 e)	 On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

	 	 a.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 		
	 statements(Refer Note no:28 of the Financial Statements)

	 	 b.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

	 	 c.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the  Investor Education and Protection 	
	 Fund by the Company. 

	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. 

For M.K Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

	                                                                                    

           Sakshi Arora
Date : 29th May, 2019	 Partner
Place : New Delhi	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 M No.F528300
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Annexure A”

 to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”of the Independent Auditors Report of 
even date to the members of Wellesley Corporation Ltd , on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2019: 

i.	 (a) 	 The Company does not have any Fixed Assets such as Properties, Plants and Equipment’s during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 	

ii.	 The company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) are not applicable to the 
Company.	

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or 
other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 
(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. ii.	 The company does not have any inventory and hence 
clauses of inventories are not applicable. 

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans, 
investments, guarantees and securities in respect of which provision of  section 185 and I86 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India and the provisions of Sections 73,74,75& 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

vi.	 The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii.	 a)	 According to information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion,company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employee’s State Insurance, Service Tax, cess and Income Tax, and any other Statutory dues, as applicable, 
with the appropriate authorities. No such statutory dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more 
than six months from the date they become payable. 

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute.

viii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company did not 
have any loans or borrowings from Financial Institutions, Banks, debentures  during the year, accordingly provisions 
of clause 3 (viii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

ix.	 According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,during the 
year no money were raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)or by way of 
term loans. 

x.	 According to the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us by management, no 
fraud noticed by the Company,or any fraud on the company by its officers, or employees during the year. 

xi.	 According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, managerial 
remuneration paid during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule 5to the 
Companies Act,2013.

xii.	 In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

xiii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us by management, all transactions with the related parties are 
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed 
in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards
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xiv.	 According to the information and explanations given to us by management, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xv.	 According to the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us by management, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934

For M.K Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

	                                                                                              Sakshi Arora
Date : 29 May 2019	 Partner
Place : 	 New Delhi	 	 	 	 	 	 M No.F528300
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial 
Statements of Wellesley Corporation Ltd
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 

i.	 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Wellesley Corporation Ltd (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

 	 Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

ii.	 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 Auditors’ Responsibility 

iii.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

iv.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

v.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

	 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

vi.	 A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

 	 Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

vii.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
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periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

	 Opinion 

viii.	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, 
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. 

For M.K Jain & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

	                                                                                    

             Sakshi Arora
Date : 29th May 2019	 Partner
Place : New Delhi	 	 	 	 	 	 M No.F528300
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Indian Rupees)
Particulars Note No Figures as at the end 

of the current reporting 
period 31st March, 

2019

Figures as at the 
end of the previous 

reporting period 31st 
March, 2018

I. ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets

(a) Other Intangible assets 2  143,000  143,000 
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) 3  834,391  782,910 
(c) Other non-current assets 4  9,429,954  10,199,626 

(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
         i)  Trade receivables 5  1,961,969  3,310,729 
        ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 6  1,421,222 139,455
       iii)  Bank Balances other than (ii)above 7  184,735 237,452
(b) Other current assets 8  11,250  13,061 

Total Assets  13,986,521 14,826.233
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY 
(a)  Equity  Share Capital 9  135,004,000  135,004,000 
(b)  Other Equity 10  (121,396,181)  (120,627,992)

LIABILITIES
(1) Non Current Liabilities

(a) Provisions 11  231,777  133,800 

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities 12  134,491  298,760 
(b) Provisions 13  12,434  10,184 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 -  7,481 

Total Equity and Liabilities  13,986,521  14,826,233 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements	 1	 	
As per our report of even date attached	 	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO.  			 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	 	 Director 	 :  Sadhana Rai
(Firm Regn No 009694N)	 	 Din	 :	 01585720

		  Director 	 :  Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
		  Din	 :  00480125
	

		  Managing Director	:	 Gyanendra Prakash	 	
		  Din	 :	 01444823	
	  	
SAKSHI ARORA		  Company                :	
PARTNER		  Secretary &	
M NO:F-528300	 	 Chief Financial	
		  Officer	 :	 Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi		  Membership no      :  FCS-9042 
Date:  29th May, 2019
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Statement of Profit and Loss  for the period ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Particulars Note 
No

Figures for the 
current reporting 

period 
March 31, 2019

Figures for 
the previous  

reporting period 
March 31, 2018

I. Revenue from operations 15  2,966,700  2,276,296 
II Other Income 16  78,368  33,938 
III Total Income(I + II)  3,045,068  2,310,234 
IV EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense 17  1,382,903  1,262,534 
Other expenses 18  2,427,001  990,178 

Total expenses (IV)  3,809,904  2,252,712 
V Profit/(loss) before Exceptional items and tax(I- IV)  (764,836)  57,522 
VI Exceptional Items  -    -   
VII Profit before tax (V- VI)  (764,836)  57,522 
VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax  -    7,481 
(2) Deferred tax  (51,481)  10,109 

IX Profit (Loss) for the period (VII-VIII)  (713,355)  39,932 
X Other Comprehensive Income

(Items that will not be reclassified to Profit  or Loss) 19  (54,834)  (18,263)
XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) 

(Comprising Profit (Loss) and other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

 
(768,189)  21,669 

XII Earnings per equity share 
(1) Basic  (0.06)  0.00
(2) Diluted  (0.06)  0.00

See accompanying notes to the financial statements	 1	 	
As per our report of even date attached	 	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO.  			 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	 	 Director 	 :  Sadhana Rai
(Firm Regn No 009694N)	 	 Din	 :	 01585720

		  Director 	 :  Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
		  Din	 :  00480125
	

		  Managing Director	:	 Gyanendra Prakash	 	
		  Din	 :	 01444823	
	  	
SAKSHI ARORA		  Company                :	
PARTNER		  Secretary &	
M NO:F-528300	 	 Chief Financial	
		  Officer	 :	 Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi		  Membership no      :  FCS-9042 
Date:  29th May, 2019
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Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended on March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Indian Rupees)

Particulars Figures as at the 
end of the current 
reporting period 
31st March,2019

Figures as at the 
end of the previous 

reporting period 
31st March,2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE INTEREST

Profit before taxation  (819,670)  39,259 
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortisation  -   
Interest income  (78,368)  (33,938)
Operating cash flow before working Capital changes  (898,038)  5,321 
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables  1,348,760  (835,334)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current assets  1,811  (1,464)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Assets  769,672  (369,998)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions  97,977  34,629 
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities  (169,501)  163,642 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities -  -   
Adjustment for conversion of Non Cash equivalent items into Cash 
and Cash Equivalents

 63,065  -   

Cash genrated from operation  1,213,746  (1,003,204)
Income taxes paid, net -  (7,481)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES(A)  1,213,746  (1,010,685)

B CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Interest received  78,368  33,938 
Less:Being not related to Cash and Cash Equivalent items.  (10,347)  (15,299)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES(B)   68,021     18,639 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C ) - -
Net Inc/(Dec) in Cash and Cash Equivalents(A+B+C)  1,281,767  (992,046)
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year  139,455  1,131,501 
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year  1,421,222  139,455 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements	 1	 	
As per our report of even date attached	 	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO.  			 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	 	 Director 	 :  Sadhana Rai
(Firm Regn No 009694N)	 	 Din	 :	 01585720

		  Director 	 :  Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
		  Din	 :  00480125
	

		  Managing Director	:	 Gyanendra Prakash	 	
		  Din	 :	 01444823	
	  	
SAKSHI ARORA		  Company                :	
PARTNER		  Secretary &	
M NO:F-528300	 	 Chief Financial	
		  Officer	 :	 Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi		  Membership no      :  FCS-9042 
Date:  29th May, 2019		
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 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH,2019
                                                                                                                     (All amounts in Indian Rupees)
A   Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

Changes in equity share capital 
during the year

Balance at the end of the reporting 
period

135004000  NIL 135004000

B    Other Equity 
Share 
Appli-
cation 
money 

pending 
allot-
ments

Equity 
Compo-
nent of 
com-

pound 
financial 
instru-
ments

Reserve & Surplus Debt 
Instruments 

through 
other 

compre-
hensive 
income

Equity 
Instruments 

through 
other com-
prehensive 

income

Effective 
portion 
of cash 

flow 
hedges

Reval-
utions 

surplus

Ex-
change 
differ-
ences  

on 
translat-
ing the 

financial 
state-

ments of 
a foreign 
operation

Other 
items of 

other 
compre-
hensive 
income 
(specify 
nature)

Money 
received 
against 
share 

warrant

Total
Capital 

Reserve
Secu-
rities 

Premi-
um Ac-
count

Other 
reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
reporting period 

- - - - -  
(120,627,992)

- - - - - -  
(120,627,992)

Changes in 
accounting policy 
or perior period 
errors

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Restated balance 
at the beginning 
of the reporting 
period 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Total 
comprehensive 
income for the 
year

- - - - -  (768,189) - - - - - -  (768,189)

Dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to 
retained earnings

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Any other change 
(to be specified)

- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance at 
the end of 
the reporting 
period 

- - - - -  
(121,396,181)

- - - - - -  
(121,396,181)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements	 1	 	
As per our report of even date attached	 	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO.  			 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	 	 Director 	 :  Sadhana Rai
(Firm Regn No 009694N)	 	 Din	 :	 01585720

		  Director 	 :  Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
		  Din	 : 480125
	

		  Managing Director	:	 Gyanendra Prakash	 	
		  Din	 :	 01444823	
	  	
SAKSHI ARORA		  Company                :	
PARTNER		  Secretary &	
M NO:F-528300	 	 Chief Financial	
		  Officer	 :	 Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi		  Membership no      :  FCS-9042 
Date:  29th May, 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March,2019

Note No. 1

(A)	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

	 The Company was incorporated on October 23, 1991, under the provisions of theCompanies Act,1956. The company 
Registered Office is located at Bhimtal,DistNanital (Uttarakhand).The Company has been primarily engaged in the 
business of Real Estate Services. The company has also adopted Hotel Business as its main business in addition 
to its existing business of Real Estate Services w.e.f 31st May,2018, however the company has not carried out any 
activity of Hotel Business during the year .

(B)	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I.	 Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred 
to as the Ind AS)as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)rules and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)as 
amended.

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands.

II.	 Basis of Measurement 

	 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise indicated.Historical cost 
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date.

III.	 Revenue Recongnisation

	 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable thateconomic benefit will flow to the Company and that therevenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured atthe fair value of the consideration received or receivabletaking into 
account contractually defined terms of paymentsand excluding taxes and duties collected on behalf of theGovernment. 
Revenue is reduced for estimated customerreturns, rebates and other similar allowances.

	 A)	 Revenue in case of Sale of Services

	 	 Revenue in case of property maintenance services shall be recognized when the amount of revenue can be 
measured, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity, stage of completion can be measured 
reliably ,the cost incurred and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

	 B)	 Revenue in case of Sale of Good 

	 	 Revenue in case of sale of goods shall be recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has 
been transferred , the amount of revenue can be measured reliably ,it is probable that economic benefits will flow 
to the entity, ,the cost incurred and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

	 C)	 Interest income on bank deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis. 

IV.	 Employee benefits

	 a. 	 Defined contribution plan

	 	 The Company’s contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as 
an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the 
employees.

	 b.	 Defined benefit plan

	 	 For defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting 
period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance 
sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. 
Remeasurementrecognised in other comprehensive income is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is 
calculated by applyingthe discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

	 	 • 	 service cost comprising current service costs, past  service costs
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	 	 • 	 net interest expense or income; and 

	 	 • 	 remeasurement

	 c.	 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

	 	 Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits in respect of wages and salaries leaves etc. are 
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchangefor the related service. 
Accumulated leaves expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, are treated as long-term employee 
benefits. Liability for such long term benefit is provided based on the actuarial valuation using theprojected unit 
credit method at year-end. 

V.	 Taxation

	 Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

	 Current tax

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year calculated in accordance with the Income 
Tax Act and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding amounts used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax 
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

	 Current and deferred tax for the year

	 Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in 
othercomprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in 
othercomprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

	 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under 
MATare available as a set off against regular income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged 
to theStatement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to 
the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period 
i.e the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown 
as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews the ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write 
down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the 
specified period.

VI.	 Intangible Assets

	 Intangible assets are measured at cost and be recognized when the probable expected future economic benefits 
attributable to the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. 

VII.	 Property Plant & Equipment

	 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if and only if It is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably

	 Depreciation thereon shall be charged based on the useful life on an asset as per the useful life of the assets its 
residual value.

VIII.	 Provisions

	 A provision is recognized when acompany  has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined on best estimate basis required to settle the 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. These are reviewed at each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the 
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current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets not recognized but are disclosed where an 
infow of economic benefit is probable.

 IX.	 Segment Reporting

	 In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 - operating segments and on the basis the review of operations being done 
by the Board and the management,the operations of the company fall under real estate business, which is considered 
to be the only reportable segment. The company derives its major revenues from real estate services. The Company 
isoperating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

X.	 Earning Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.  
Since there is no potential; dilutive equity shares hence there is no impact on basic EPS while calculating dilutive EPS.

XI.	 Current and Non Current Classification

	 All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company’snormal operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Revised Schedule III to the CompaniesAct, 2013

	 Assets

	 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 a) 	 it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

	 b)	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

	 c) 	 it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

	 d) 	 it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting date. 

	 Liabilities

	 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 a) 	 it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

	 b) 	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

	 c) 	 it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

	 d) 	 the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting date.Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

XII.	 Cash Flow Statement

	 The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available 
information. Cash flows from operating activities are  reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the  effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments.

XIII.	 Impairment 

	 The carrying amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on 
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of 
capital.

XIV.	 Inventory 

	 Inventories are stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Net realisable value (NRV) is the 
estimatedselling price in the ordinary course of the business, less the estimated costsofcompletion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of all categories of inventory 
is determined using weighted average cost method. The cost is arrived at  first in first out basis(FIFO).
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2018
NOTE NO. 2

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS	

PARTICULARS Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Brands or Trademarks  143,000  143,000 
TOTAL 143,000 143,000

2.1 	 Expenses of Rs 1,43,000/-incurred for registering trade mark “Bio Naturals” for its health food & beauty products 
business is show as intangible assets at cost.	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

NOTE - 3

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

PARTICULARS Figures as at the 
end of the previous 

reporting period 
31st March, 2018

Movement 
During the 
year (net)

Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 

reporting period 
31st March, 2019

Deferred Tax Asset  782,910  51,481  834,391 
(Brought forward losses & Un absorbed depreciation)
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)  782,910  51,481  834,391 

NOTE - 4
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

PARTICULARS Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

i)  Advances other than capital advances
    a) Security Deposits (Note 4.1)  4,375,000  4,375,000 
    b) Other advances (Note 4.2)  4,188,608  4,688,608 
ii) Prepaid taxes  866,346  1,136,018 

 9,429,954  10,199,626 
Unsecured considered doubtful
Other Loans and Advances  839,214  839,214 

 839,214  839,214 
Less:-Provision for doubtful advance  839,214  839,214 
TOTAL  9,429,954  10,199,626 

4.1 -	 Security Deposits

Unsecured Considered Good -Litigation pending before courts
Ms P. Jayamma & Ors - Airport Road Project, Banglore  3,000,000  3,000,000 
Mr. Anil Parashar- Usha Niketan, Jaipur  1,200,000  1,200,000 
TOTAL  4,200,000  4,200,000 
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4.2- 	 Other Advances 

Unsecured Considered Good -Litigation pending before courts
Project Cost & Legal Expenses- Airport Road Project, Bangalore  1,765,678  1,765,678 
Litigation Expenses & Stamp Fees- CIDCO, Mumbai  272,430  272,430 
L.G Electronics Pvt Ltd-MCIE,Badarpur, Delhi  450,000  450,000 
Mr.R.L Baisawal & Sons (HUF), C- Scheme,Jaipur  1,700,000  1,700,000 
I.E Contractor, Delhi  -    500,000 
TOTAL  4,188,108  4,688,108 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended on March 31, 2019
NOTE NO. 5
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Unsecured, considered good  (Note 5.1)  1,961,969  3,310,729 
Doubtful (Note 5.2)  425,426 -
Less: Provison for Doubtful debts  425,426 -
TOTAL  1,961,969  3,310,729 

Note 5.1 
Rs 19,61,969/- recoverable from NSEL (National Spot Exchange Limited) is under litigation pending before courts , however 
mangement is of the view that recovery of the amount is certain .	 	
Note 5.2		
Rs 4,25,426/- recoverable from Mr Rakesh Sharma is doubtful , despite having court decree , being not tracable	
NOTE NO. 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars Figures as 

at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

a)   Balance with Banks 
         In Current Accounts 370,646 134,470
         In term deposit accounts (Maturity less than 3 months)  1,043,935    -
         Interest Accrued on Bank FDRs 4.233 -
b)  Cash on Hand 2,408 4,985
TOTAL 1,421,222 139,455
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NOTE NO. 7	

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

  In current account (Note 7.1) -  63,065 
  In term deposit  account (Maturity more than 3 months) (Note 7.2)  100,000  100,000 
  Interest Accrued on Bank FDRs 84,735 74,387
TOTAL 184,735 237,452

Note 7.1	 The following bank account were seized by statutory authorities around 15 years back  and company is unable 
to get any balance confirmation . Balances as per books of accounts are now being written off as effective bank 
balances would have become NIL due to bank charges 	 	

Name of Bank and Branch Account Number Amount Amount

Canara Bank , Sarita Vihar Branch,
New Delhi 75  43,879  43,879 

Corporation Bank, Bhopal 000909  5,901  5,901 

Corporation Bank, Vasant Vihar, Delhi 000156  9,215  9,215 

ICICI Bank B.M 004605001097  2,333  2,333 

Syndicate Bank, Mumbai 50001010007890  1,737  1,737 

TOTAL  63,065  63,065 
			 
Note 7.2	 Term deposit of Rs 1,00,000/- has been given as security against the bank gurantee submitted to Department 

of Trade and Taxes Delhi. The tenure of the Bank Guarantee has already been expired however the Bank 
Guarantee is yet to be released by the Department of Trade and Taxes, Delhi	 	 	

NOTE NO. 8

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Prepaid Expenses  11,250  13,061 

Total  11,250  13,061 
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NOTE NO. 9

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Authorised

 1,50,00,000 (Previous year 1,50,00,000) Equity share of Rs 10/- each 150,000,000 150,000,000 

Issued

1,35,00,400 (Previous year 1,35,00,400) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 135,004,000 135,004,000 

Subscribed & fully paid up

1,35,00,400 (Previous year 1,35,00,400) Equity shares of Rs 10/- each 135,004,000 135,004,000 

TOTAL 135,004,000 135,004,000 

9.1	 Details of reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No. of shares  Rupees No. of shares Rupees

Number of shares outstanding at the 
beginning of the year

 13,500,400  135,004,000  13,500,400  135,004,000 

Add: Changes during the year  -    -    -    -   
Number of shares outstanding at the 
end of the year

 13,500,400  135,004,000  13,500,400  135,004,000 

9.2	 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the company.

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
No of Shares  % No of Shares  % 

Mrs Sadhana Rai  10,000,000  74.07  -    74.07 

9.3 	 The company has not reserved any equity shares for issue under options  and contracts/commitments for sale of 
shares/disinvestment	

9.4 	 The company for the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date has not	 	

	 (i)  allotted any equity shares as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash	

	 (ii) alloted any fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares	

9.5 	 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 
of the shareholders, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are 
entitled to receive only the residual assets of the company. The distribution of dividend, if any, is in the proportion to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.	 	 	 	 	 	
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NOTE NO. 10

OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Other Reserves 
Retained Earnings  (121,396,181)  (120,627,992)
TOTAL  (121,396,181)  (120,627,992)

NOTE NO. 11
PROVISIONS

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Provision for employee benefits
      - Gratuity(Unfunded)  172,221  91,808 

  - Leave(Unfunded)  59,556  41,992 
TOTAL  231,777  133,800 

11.1 The following table sets out the disclosure in respect of defined benefit plans for Employee benefits  as required under 
Ind AS 19.	

PARTICULARS Gratuity Leave Encashment
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation :
Obligations as at 01.04.2018  98,658  45,326 
Service cost  20,373  2,783 
Interest Cost  7,492  3,442 
Benefits Paid  -    20,000 
Acturial(Gain)/ Loss  54,834  31,403 
Obligations as at 31.03.2019  181,357  62,954 
Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair
value of the plan assets :
Fair Value of plan assets as at 31.03.2019  -    -   
Present value of the defined benefit obligations as at 31.03.2019  181,357  62,954 
(Asset)/Liability recognised in the balance sheet  181,357  62,954 
Short Term Provision  9,036  3,398 
Long Term Provision  172,221  59,556 
Total  181,257  62,954 
Assumptions
Attrition rate  5%  5% 
Discount factor  7.70%  7.70% 
Estimated rate of return on plan assets  N.A  N.A 
Salary Increase  8%  8% 
Retirement age  60  60 
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NOTE - 12

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

a)    Other Advances
       Due to Statutory Authorities  8,930  153,014 
b)   Others 
       Accrued Expenses  125,561  145,746 
TOTAL  134,491  298,760 

NOTE NO. 13

PROVISIONS

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Provision for employee benefits
     - Gratuity(Unfunded)  9,036  6,850 
     - Leave(Unfunded)  3,398  3,334 
TOTAL  12,434  10,184 

NOTE 13.1 - Refer Note 11.1

NOTE NO. 14

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES(NET)

Particulars Figures as 
at the end of 
the current 
reporting 

period 31st 
March, 2019

Figures as 
at the end of 
the previous 

reporting 
period 31st 
March, 2018

Provision for Income Tax -  7,481 
TOTAL -  7,481 

NOTE NO. 15

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  Figures for 
the current 
reporting 

period  
 March 31, 2019

 Figures for 
the previous 

reporting 
period  

 March 31, 2018 
Sale of Services  2,966,700  2,267,500 
Other Operating Revenue  -    8,796 
TOTAL  2,966,700  2,276,296 
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NOTE NO. 16

OTHER INCOME

Particulars  Figures for 
the current 
reporting 

period  
 March 31, 2019

 Figures for 
the previous 

reporting 
period  

 March 31, 2018 

Interest Income  78,368  33,938 

TOTAL  78,368  33,938 

NOTE NO. 17

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars  Figures for 
the current 
reporting 

period  
 March 31, 2019

 Figures for 
the previous 

reporting 
period  

 March 31, 2018 

Salaries and wages  1,303,553  1,186,437 

Contribution to Provident and other funds  76,836  73,900 

Staff welfare expenses  2,514  2,197 

TOTAL  1,382,903  1,262,534 

NOTE NO. 18

OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Figures for 
the current 
reporting 

period  
 March 31, 2019

 Figures for 
the previous 

reporting 
period  

 March 31, 2018
Legal &  Professional Exp  719,492  372,257 

Payments to Auditor- Audit Fees & Expenses  30,484  26,000 

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  6,363  1,628 

Fee to Stock Exchanges  250,000  287,500 

Depository Fee(NSDL & CDSL)  69,086  143,000 

Statutory Publication Expenses  63,120  52,548 

Printing & Stationery  92,329  14,250 

Directors Sitting Fees  44,000  31,200 

Postage & Couriers  131,015  19,693 

Rent  15,000  15,000 

Misc Expenses  17,621  27,102 

Provison for Doutful Debts  425,426  -   

Advance Written Off  500,000  -   

Bank Balances Written Off  63,065  -   

TOTAL  2,427,001  990,178 
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NOTE NO. 19

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Particulars  Figures for 
the current 
reporting 

period  
 March 31, 2019 

 Figures for 
the previous 

reporting 
period  

 March 31, 2018
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
i)  Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans  (54,834)  (18,263)
TOTAL  (54,834)  (18,263)
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20.	 Commitment &Contingent Liabilities:-

	 a)	 LG Electronics India Pvt. Ltd (LG) had filed a suit against the company, Usha India Ltd., and others for the 
recovery of Rs. 4,65,02,400/- given as security deposit for the premises A-41, Mohan Co-operative Industrial 
Estate, New Delhi –110044 taken by it on lease from Usha India Ltd. and against the maintenance service 
agreement for the same premises entered into with the company. The company has denied its liability on the 
ground that it has already assigned the agreement to Lord Mahadev Trust on 6th August, 1997 and transferred 
the security deposit of Rs. 87,19,200/- received by the Company to the said Trust. However, Hon’ble High 
Court of Delhi has passed a part joint decree of Rs. 2,31,25,803/- in favour of LG and the LG filed an execution 
petition and subsequently the Court directed the ICICI Bank, New friends Colony, New Delhi to transfer a sum of 
Rs.4,50,000/- to LG. The liability on account of above decree has not been ascertained by the court among the 
parties to the suit. 

	 	 However, the management is of the opinion based onlegal advices,that the Company shall not be liable to make 
any payment to L.G, even the amount of Rs 4,50,000/- shall be recovered  by the company from LG Electronics 
India Pvt. Ltd (LG).Presently Rs 4,50,000/- so transferred to LG Electronics has been shown under the head of 
Long term Loan and Advances . 

	 (b) 	 Other money for which the company is contingently liable

	 	 Assessing officer has filed an appeal before the ITAT, New Delhi against the order of Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeals) allowing the appeal for deleting the demand of Rs 6,51,050/- towards the penalty imposed by the 
Assessing Officer U/s 271(1) (C) relating to the assessment year 2003-04. The case was remanded back to 
CIT(Appeals) for adjudication on merit vide order dated 06-06-2008 by ITAT. However the CIT(Appeals) has not 
taken the case till date.

	 c)	 Commitments

	 	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not providedfor (net of advances)
Nil (previous year Nil)

21. 	 Details of the transactions with Related Parties as per the requirements of Ind AS-24 are as follows:-

Sl 
No. Name Relation

Nature of 
Transaction

Transaction for 
the period ended 
31st March,2019

Transaction for 
the period ended 
31st March,2018

1. Mr. Gyanendra Prakash Managing Director Director 
Remuneration

2,40,000/- 2,40,000/-

2. Mr. Sumeer Narain Mathur Company Secretary & 
Chief Financial Officer

Salary 10,88,000/- 9,90,250/-

3 Mrs. Sadhana Rai Promoter NIL NIL NIL

Sl No. As on
31.03.2019       

As on
31.03.2018

A) No. of Shares at the beginning and at the end of the year                        1,35,00,400 1,35,00,400
B) Net Profits after Tax available for Equity Shareholders (7,68,188)       21,669
C) Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (Annualized) (0.06)   0.00

23.	 Value of Imports on CIF basis : NIL (P. Year Nil)

24.	 Details of imported and indigenous raw materials, spare parts, and components consumed

	 Raw Materials: NIL(P. Year Nil)

	 Stores & spares: NIL(P. Year Nil)

25.	 Expenditure in foreign currency: NIL (P Year Nil).

	 Earning In Foreign currency: NIL (P Year Nil).
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26.	 Exceptional items NIL (P.Y NIL)

27.	 The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been 
relied upon by the auditors. According to suchidentification, thein formation as required to be reported as per Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 as at March 31, 2019are as under:-

	 (a) 	 the principal amount and the interest due thereon  remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 31.03.2019: 
Current Year NIL (Previous Year NIL)

	 (b)	 the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during accounting year 2018-19:Current Year NIL (Previous Year NIL)

	 (c)	 the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:Current Year NIL (Previous Year NIL)

	 (d) 	 the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 31.03.2019:Current Year NIL (Previous Year 
NIL)

	 (e) 	 the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when 
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:Current Year 
NIL (Previous Year NIL)

28.	 Pending Litigations- 

	 a)	 The contingent liabilities in respect of litigations and their impact on financial position is disclosed in brief at note 
no:20. 

	 b)	 Advances and Security Deposits extended for various projects alongwith expenses incurred on them by the 
company are under Litigation as detailed in Note no:4.1 & 4.2. The Company’s Management reasonably expect 
that upon final judgement of each & every case, there would be very positive impact on the company’s financial 
position.

29.	 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

30.	 Figures in brackets denote negative figures.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
	 1		
As per our report of even date attached	 	  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
FOR M.K JAIN & CO.  			 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	 	 Director 	 :  Sadhana Rai
(Firm Regn No 009694N)	 	 Din	 :	 01585720
		  Director 	 :  Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia
		  Din	 :  00480125
	
		  Managing Director	:	 Gyanendra Prakash	 	
		  Din	 :	 01444823	
	  	
SAKSHI ARORA		  Company                :	
PARTNER		  Secretary &	
M NO:F-528300	 	 Chief Financial	
		  Officer	 :	 Sumeer Narain Mathur 
Place: New Delhi		  Membership no      :  FCS-9042 
Date:  29th May, 2019
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form 

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
       	  Companies Act (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
CIN: L45202UR1991PLC000604     
Name of the company: WELLESLEY CORPORATION LIMITED
Registered office: Shop#1, Country Inn, Mehragaon, Bhimtal, Uttarakhand - 248179 

Name of the member (s):
Registered address

Email id.
Folio No. / Client id :
DP ID: 

I /We, being the member(s) of ____________ shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:-
1.	 Name:
	 Address:
	 Email id:
	 Signatures ____________________, or falling him 
2.	 Name:
	 Address:
	 Email id:
	 Signatures ____________________, or falling him 
3.	 Name:
	 Address:
	 Email id:
	 Signatures ____________________, or falling him 
As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf At the 28th Annual General Meeting of the company, to be 
held on the Wednesday, 28th August, 2019 at 10:00 AM at“Country Inn Hotel & Resorts”, Mehragaon ,Bhimtal,  Uttarakhand-248179, and 
at theany adjournments thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business For Against
1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,2019 and 

the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
2 Re-appointment of Mrs.Sadhana Rai, Director , (DIN:01585720), who is liabile to retire by rotation at the 28th 

Annual General Meeting.
Special Business

3 Appointment of Mr Saurbh Kedia, Additional Director (DIN:02476376) , as director of the company
4 Re-appointment of Mr. Vishnu Gopal Rajgarhia (DIN: 00480125) as an Independent Director for a second 

term of five consecutive years, in terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Signed this ___________day of _______2019

Signatures of shareholder______________________ Signatures of Proxy holder(s) ___________________________
Note: 

1)	 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed andDeposited at the Registered office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before theCommencement of the Meeting

2)	 For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statements and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the Twenty Seventh Annual 
General Meeting.

3)	 It is optional to put a  in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated above. If you leave “For” or “Against” 
column blank against any or all resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks 
appropriate.

Attendance Slip
II, certify that I am registered shareholder/proxy for the registered shareholder ofthe Company.I hereby record my presence at the Annual 
General Meeting of the Companyon 28th August, 2019 at “Country Inn Hotel & Resorts ”,Mehragaon,Bhimtal, Uttarakhand-248179.

Clint id/Folio Number_________________________ Signature of attending Member/Proxy_________________________

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp
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ROUTE MAP OF 28th AGM VENUE
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These directions are for planning purposes only. You may �nd that construction projects, tra�c, weather, or other events may cause conditions to differ from the map
results, and you should plan your route accordingly. You must obey all signs or notices regarding your route.

Bhowali-Bhimtal-Haldwani Road, Mehragaon, Nainital, Uttarakhand 263136

13. Continue straight to stay on NH109
 Pass by KMVN Tourist Guest House (on the left)

14. Turn right onto Bhowali-Bhimtal-Haldwani Rd/Haldwani-Bhowali Rd
 Continue to follow Bhowali-Bhimtal-Haldwani Rd
 Pass by Haidakhaan Babaji Ashram (on the left in 400 m)

15. Turn left
 Destination will be on the left

Country Inn Bhimtal

2.9 km

21.1 km

27 s (120 m)

Ranibagh - Haldwani Rd, Kathgodam, Haldwani, Uttar akhand
263126

Kathgodam Railway Station

1. Head southwest  on Railwa y Colony Rd  toward
NH109

2. Turn right at Kumaun t our and tr avels  onto NH109
 Pass b y Tadka Hotel (on the left)

3. Continue str aight past Om Hari Phot o Studio  to
sta y on NH109

 Pass b y jugmug laundr y (on the left)

4. Turn right at Ranibag Nurser y onto Bhowali-
Bhimtal-Haldwani Rd /Haldwani-Bhowali Rd

 Continue to follow Bhowali-Bhimtal-Haldwani Rd

 Pass b y Bisht Chick en Shop (on the left)

5. Turn left  at Hill F ood Restaur ant
 Destination will be on the left

170 m

300 m

2.9 km

21.1 km

120 m



Annual Report 2018-19

WELLESLEY CORPORA TION LIMITED

B- 210, Ansal Chamber - I, 3, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi - 110 066

WELLESLEY
C LORPORATION IMITED
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